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PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS
McDonald’s Corporation, the registrant, togethehvis subsidiaries, is referred to herein as tBerfipany.”

a. General development of business

During 2005, there have been no significant chatgése Company’s corporate structure or matefiahges in the Company’s method of
conducting business. Effective January 1, 2005;emeganized certain of our subsidiaries to fad#itdne organization of our geographic
segments into a structure that more appropriatflgats the operation of the Company’s worldwidsibess. We created separate Delaware
corporate entities for certain of the geographgnsents, namely McDonald’s USA, McDonald’s EuropeDdnald’s AMEA (Asia, Middle
East and Africa), McDonald’s Latin America and Maiadd’s International. An additional subsidiary wasated for McDonald’s Ventures
which consists of our non-McDonald’s brands.

b. Financial information about segments
Segment data for the years ended December 31, 2008,and 2003 are included in Part Il, Item 8,044 of this Form 10-K.

c. Narrative description of business
* General

The Company primarily franchises and operates Melbs restaurants in the food service industry.SEheestaurants serve a varied, yet
limited, value-priced menu (see Products) in mheat100 countries around the world.

The Company also operates Boston Market and Chipdgixican Grill (Chipotle) and has a minority owstaip interest in U.K.-based
Pret A Manger. In January 2006, Chipotle completedhitial public offering of 6.1 million shares.d®onald’s sold an additional 3.0 million
Chipotle shares while still remaining a majoritystholder. In December 2003, the Company solddisalibs Pizzeria business.

Since McDonald’s restaurant business comprisesaliyt all of the Company’s consolidated operatiaguits, this narrative primarily
relates to that business, unless otherwise noted.

All restaurants are operated either by the Complayyndependent entrepreneurs under the termsnoéffiise arrangements
(franchisees), or by affiliates and developmertaisees operating under license agreements.

The Company'’s operations are designed to assusistency and high quality at every McDonaldéstaurant. When granting franch
and forming joint ventures, the Company is selectimd generally is not in the practice of franetgsio or partnering with investor groups or
passive investors.

Under the conventional franchise arrangement, fresees provide capital by initially investing iretequipment, signs, seating and
décor of their restaurant businesses, and by rsiimgein the business over time. The Company gdpesiaares the investment by owning or
leasing the land and building. Franchisees contibmthe Company’s revenue stream through payofaent and service fees based upon a
percent of sales, with specified minimum rent pagtaealong with initial fees. The conventional fthise arrangement typically lasts 20 y:
and franchising practices are generally consigtenughout the world. Under our developmental Iggearrangement, licensees provide
capital for 100% of the business, including thd estate interest. While the Company generallyrftasapital invested, it does receive a
royalty based on a percent of sales. A discussgarding site selection is included in Part I, It&npage 7 of this Form 10-K.

The Company, its franchisees/licensees and aéfflipurchase food, packaging, equipment and ottegtsgioom numerous independent
suppliers that have been approved by the CompdmyCbmpany has established and strictly enforags duiality standards. The Company
has quality assurance labs around the world torerthat our high standards are consistently met.dqtality assurance process not only
involves ongoing product reviews, but also on-gigpections of suppliers’ facilities. Further, adlity Assurance Board, composed of the
Company'’s technical, safety and supply chain sfistsaprovides strategic global leadership foragibects of food quality and safety. In
addition, the Company works closely with suppli@r&ncourage innovation, assure best practiceslave continuous improvement.

Independently owned and operated distribution eengdso approved by the Company, distribute prtedaied supplies to most
McDonald’s restaurants. In addition, restauranspenel are trained in the proper storage, handlimpreparation of our products and in the
delivery of customer service.

McDonald’s global brand is well known. Marketingpmotional and public relations activities are desid to promote McDonald’s
brand image and differentiate the Company from catitgys. Marketing and promotional efforts focusvatue, food taste, menu choice and
the customer experience. The Company believesnipsrtant to give back to the people and commesiéiround the world who are
responsible for our success through its efforsoicial responsibility.

* Products
McDonald’s restaurants offer a substantially umifanenu. In addition, McDonald’s tests new productsan ongoing basis.

McDonald’s menu includes hamburgers and cheesetsyigigg Mac, Quarter Pounder with Cheese, Big NstyaFilet-O-Fish, several
chicken sandwiches, Chicken McNuggets, Chickencgglérench fries, premium salads, milk shakes, Ml desserts, sundaes, soft serve
cones, pies, cookies, and soft drinks and otheetages. In addition, the restaurants sell a vadggtther products during limited-time
promotions.

McDonalc's restaurants in the U.S. and certain internatioraakets are open during breakfast hours and affell- or limited-breakfas



menu. Breakfast offerings may
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include Egg McMuffin, Sausage McMuffin with Egg, Kdddles, biscuit and bagel sandwiches, hotcakdsauffins.

Chipotle serves gourmet burritos, burrito bolsptaand salads. Boston Market is a home-meal raplkececoncept serving chicken,
meatloaf, sirloin, sandwiches, soups and salads$.APManger is a quick-service food concept thatese mainly prepared and packaged cold
sandwiches, soups, salads, coffees and teas nohinfyg breakfast and lunch.

. Intellectual property

The Company owns valuable intellectual propertyuding trademarks, service marks, patents, copigighade secrets and other proprietary
information, some of which, including “McDonald’s;The Golden Arches Logo,” “Ronald McDonald,” “Bigac” and other related marks,
are of material importance to the Companyusiness. Depending on the jurisdiction, tradkmgenerally are valid as long as they are us:
registered. Patents and licenses are of varyingiréeny durations.

. Seasonal operations

The Company does not consider its operations tehsonal to any material degree.

. Working capital practices

Information about the Company’s working capitalgti@es is incorporated herein by reference to Manant’s discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations fog t/ears ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2@@&irl, Iltem 7, pages 13 through 32,
the Consolidated statement of cash flows for treeyended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 iflP&eim 8, page 36 of this Form 10-K.

e Customers

The Company’s business is not dependent upon &esingtomer or small group of customers.

* Backlog

Company-operated restaurants have no backlog orders

* Government contracts

No material portion of the business is subjecetwegotiation of profits or termination of contractssubcontracts at the election of the (
government.

» Competition

McDonald’s restaurants compete with international, natiaoregjional and local retailers of food products. Tmmpany competes on the be
of price, convenience and service and by offeringlity food products. The Company’s competitiorthie broadest perspective includes
restaurants, quickservice eating establishmerggagparlors, coffee shops, street vendors, conweaifood stores, delicatessens and
supermarkets.

In the U.S., there are approximately 550,000 reatets that generated about $350 billion in annakgssin 2005. McDonald’s restaurant
business accounts for 2.5% of those restaurant3.&8fd of the sales. No reasonable estimate carade wf the number of competitors
outside the U.S.

» Research and developme

The Company operates a research and developmdity facthe U.S., two facilities in Europe and ofaxility opening soon in Asia. While
research and development activities are importatita Company’s business, these expenditures araaterial. Independent suppliers also
conduct research activities that benefit the McDa/seSystem, which includes franchisees and supphs well as the Company, its
subsidiaries and joint ventures.

*  Environmental matter

The Company is not aware of any federal, stateaallenvironmental laws or regulations that willtevally affect its earnings or competitive
position or result in material capital expenditutdewever, the Company cannot predict the effedtooperations of possible future
environmental legislation or regulations. Durindd30there were no material capital expendituregftironmental control facilities and no
such material expenditures are anticipated.

*  Number of employe

During 2005, the Company’s average number of engdeyworldwide, including Comparoperated restaurant employees, was approxinm
447,000. This includes employees at McDonald’s Camygpperated restaurants as well as other restauranepts operated by the Compe
d. Financial information about geographic areas

Financial information about geographic areas istiporated herein by reference to Management’s d&on and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations in Part IIimté, pages 13 through 32 and Segment and geogriaftrimation in Part Il, Item 8, page 44
of this Form 10-K.

e. Available information

The Company is subject to the informational requiats of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (ErgkaAct). The Company therefore
files periodic reports, proxy statements and othfrmation with the Securities and Exchange Comsiois (SEC). Such reports may



obtained by visiting the Public Reference Roomhef $EC at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 2064By calling the SEC at (800) SEC-
0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an internet siww.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy aridrimation statements and other
information.

Financial and other information can also be acckesehe investor section of the Company’s welsiteww.mcdonalds.com. The
Company makes available, free of charge, copiemiofnnual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports on Form
8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or filmd pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Brgk Act as soon as reasonably
practicable after filing such material electronigalr otherwise furnishing it to the SEC.
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Copies of financial and other information are asailable free of charge by calling (630) 623-7428y sending a request to McDonald's
Corporation Investor Relations Service Center, Depent 300, McDonald’s Plaza, Oak Brook, Illinoi3523.

Also posted on McDonald’s website are the Compa@ygorate Governance Principles, the charterseddhald’s Audit Committee,
Compensation Committee and Governance CommitteeCtimpany’s Standards of Business Conduct, the GoHthics for Chief Executive
Officer and Senior Financial Officers and the Cofil€onduct for the Board of Directors. Copies @b documents are also available free of
charge by calling (630) 623-7428 or by sendingcuest to McDonald’s Corporation Investor Relati®esvice Center, Department 300,
McDonald’s Plaza, Oak Brook, lllinois 60523.

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer, James An8kr, certified to the New York Stock Exchange (NEY$n June 7, 2005,
pursuant to Section 303A.12 of the NYSE's listitgnslards, that he was not aware of any violatiothbyCompany of the NYSE's corporate
governance listing standards as of that date.

Information on our website is not incorporated ititis Form 10-K or our other securities filings dadhot a part of them.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

This report includes forward-looking statementswthmur plans and future performance, including ¢hasder Outlook for 2006 in
Management’s discussion and analysis. These statemge such words as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “lieye” and “plan.” They reflect our
expectations about the future and speak only &seodlate of this report. We do not undertake taatgdr revise them. Our expectations (or
the underlying assumptions) may change or not &kéizesl, and you should not place undue reliancomard-looking statements.

Our business and execution of our strategic plaPlan to Win, are subject to risks. By far thestimportant of these is our ability to
remain relevant to our customers and a brand tiusy. Meeting customer expectations is complicatethe risks inherent in our operating
environment. The informal eating out segment ofrdsaurant industry, although largely mature inroajor markets, is also highly
fragmented and competitive. We have the addederigd! of the cultural, economic and regulatory dififiees that exist among the more than
100 countries where we operate. We also face misidapting our business model in particular markéts decision to own restaurants or to
operate under conventional franchise, licenseiat j@nture agreements is driven by many factoresehinterrelationship is complex and
changing. Our plan, as described below, to reduc@wnership of restaurants may be difficult toiagh for many reasons, and the change in
ownership mix may not affect our results as we eeapect. Regulatory and similar initiatives aroune world have also become more wide-
ranging and prescriptive and affect how we opewsgeyell as our results. In particular, the incirea$ocus on nutrition presents challenges
for our menu development and marketing plans angadsaersely affect our sales and costs of doingnless.

These risks can have an impact both in the nearlary-term and are reflected in the following ddesations and factors that we
believe are most likely to affect our performance.

Our ability to remain a relevant and trusted brand and to increase sales depends largely on how wekk\wave designed and execute
against the Plan to Win.

We developed the Plan to Win to address the kegdriof our business and results—people, prodptasge, price and promotion. The
quality of our execution depends mainly on theofuihg:

« Our ability to anticipate and respond to trendstber factors that affect the informal eating ouatrket and our competitive position
in the various markets we serve, such as spenditigrps, demographic changes, consumer food prefesepublicity about our
products or operations that can drive consumergpdians, as well as our success in planning andutixeg initiatives to address
these trends and factors or other competitive press

» The success of our initiatives to support menucedgihysical activity and nutritional awareness tanadddress these and other
matters of social responsibility in a way that conmicates our values effectively and inspires thsttand confidence of our
customers

» Our ability to respond effectively to adverse cansu perceptions about the quick-service segmettteninformal eating out
market, our products or the reliability of our siypphain and the safety of the commaodities we psaeticularly beef and chicke

* The success of our plans for 2006 and beyond toawepexisting products and to roll-out new produstd product line extensions,
as well as the impact of our competitors’ actiansgsponse to our product improvements and intibahg and our ability to
continue robust product development and managedimplexity of our restaurant operatiol

»  Our ability to achieve an overall product mix thi#ferentiates the McDonald’s experience and batareonsumer value with
margin expansion, including in markets where cogirizing pressures may be significa

» The impact of pricing, marketing and promotionand on product sales and margins and on our atuliigrget these efforts
effectively to maintain or expand market sh:
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* The impact of events such as public boycotts, |atrikes, price increases or other actions invgh\oar vendors or distribution
centers, natural disasters or other calamitiesctnatadversely affect our supply chain and marggéwell as the ability of our
vendors or distribution centers to perfol

e Our ability to drive improvements in our restausamécruit qualified restaurant personnel and nadévemployees to achieve
sustained high service levels so as to improveuwors perceptions of our ability to meet their extpons for quality food served
in clean and friendly environmen

*  Whether our restaurant remodeling and rebuildifigresf will foster sustained increases in comparahles for the affected
restaurants and yield our desired return on ouitaldpvestment; an

« Our ability to leverage promotional or operatingaesses in individual markets into other markes imely and cost-effective
way.

Our results and financial condition are affected byour ownership mix and whether we can achieve a mithat optimizes margins and
returns, while meeting our business needs and cust@r expectations.

Our plans call for a reduction in Company-operatedtaurants in the U.K. by riganchising them to third parties, as well as thequit
of a developmental license model in between 19 @d@itional markets and organizational changegrprove the performance of Company-
operated restaurants in other markets, notably @naVhether and when we can achieve these plangelhas their success, is uncertain
and depends mainly on the following:

« Our ability to identify prospective franchisees dicénsees with the experience and financial ressuto be effective operators of
McDonalc' s restaurants

*  Whether there are regulatory or other constrafms riestrict or prevent our ability to implement plans or increase our costs;

« How quickly we re-franchise or enter into developiaé licenses, which we expect will vary by mar&at could also vary
significantly from period to perioc

» Whether the three-year period during which we ptamake these changes will be sufficient to achteee; and

» Changes in the operating or legal environment @hdraircumstances that cause us to delay or reviselans to alter our
ownership mix

Our results and financial condition are affected byglobal and local market conditions, which can adwsely affect our sales, margins
and net income.

Our results of operations are substantially affelct®t only by global economic conditions, but dlgdocal operating and economic
conditions, which can vary substantially by markétfavorable conditions can depress sales in argivarket and may prompt promotional
or other actions that adversely affect our margit@strain our operating flexibility or result irharges, restaurant closings or sales of
Company-operated restaurants. Whether we can mathmegesk effectively depends mainly on the foihmwy

»  Our ability to manage fluctuations in commodityges, interest and foreign exchange rates and teetebf local governmental
initiatives to manage national economic conditisnsh as consumer spending and inflation r

» The impact of labor costs on our margins, givenlabor-intensive business model and the long-teemdt toward higher wages in
both mature and developing marke

» The effects of local governmental initiatives torrage national economic conditions such as consaperding or wage and
inflation rates:

« Our ability to develop effective initiatives in ueigherforming markets, such as the U.K., which jgegiencing a highly competitive
informal eating out market and low consumer confaelevels, Japan, which is experiencing slow escoagrowth and a
challenging informal eating out market and Southe@o which is experiencing improving, yet still le@nsumer confidence leve

* The nature and timing of management decisions alnmerperforming markets or assets, including datsésthat can result in
material impairment charges that reduce our easniagd

» The success of our strategy in China, where welarming significant growth, including our ability identify and secure
appropriate real estate sites and to manage the aog profitability of our growth in light of corafitive pressures and other
operating conditions that may limit pricing flexibyj.

Increasing regulatory complexity will continue to dfect our operations and results in material ways.

Our legal and regulatory environment worldwide es@®us to complex compliance, litigation and sinrikks that affect our
operations and results in material ways. In mangwf markets, including the United States and Eerope are subject to increasing
regulation, which has significantly increased ooustof doing business. In developing markets, we tiae risks associated with new and
untested laws and judicial systems. Among the imgpertant regulatory and litigation risks we faceeahe following:

» The difficulty of achieving compliance with oftenmflicting regulations in multiple state or natibnaarkets and the potential
impact of new or changing regulati
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that affects or restricts elements of our busingssh as possible changes in regulations reladirgltertising to children or
nutritional labeling:

» Adverse results of pending or future litigationglurding litigation challenging the composition afrgproducts or the appropriaten
or accuracy of our advertising or other communaai

» The impact of nutritional, health and other sciéntnquiries and conclusions, which are constastlglving and often contradicto
in their implications, but nonetheless drive consuperceptions, litigation and regulation in wayattare material to our busine

» The impact of litigation trends, particularly inromajor markets, including class actions involvaunsumers and shareholders,
labor and employment matters or landlord liabitityd the relative level of our defense costs, wkienly from period to period
depending on the number, nature and proceduraisstditpending proceedings and the possibility tffesaents or judgment

» Disruptions in our operations or price volatilitya market that can result from government actimdding price controls,
limitations on the import or export of commoditi@e use or governme-mandated closure of our or our ven¢ operations

» The risks of operating in markets, such as Bramil @hina, in which there are significant unceriastincluding with respect to the
application of legal requirements and the enforiidalf laws and contractual obligation

e The risks associated with information security #raluse of cashless payments, such as increasestriment in technology, the
costs of compliance with privacy, consumer protettnd other laws, costs resulting from consunsrdrand the impact on our
margins as the use of cashless payments increass

» The impact of changes in accounting principlesracfices (or related legal or regulatory interpietes or our critical accounting
estimates), including changes in tax accountinguotaws (or interpretations thereof), which widgend on their timing, nature and
scope.

Our results can be adversely affected by market digptions or events, such as the impact of weathewoaditions and natural disasters.

Market disruptions due to severe weather conditibmsorist activities, health epidemics or pandesor the prospect of these events
(such as recent reports about the potential sprefaalvian flu) can affect consumer spending andidente levels and adversely affect our
results or prospects in affected markets. Our ngtoef proceeds under any insurance we maintairtfese purposes may be delayed or the
proceeds may be insufficient to offset our losskg.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The Company owns and leases real estate primardgrinection with its restaurant business. The Gmyjidentifies and develops sites that
offer convenience to customers and long-term satesprofit potential to the Company. To assessmnpiate the Company analyzes traffic and
walking patterns, census data and other relevdat the Company’s experience and access to advaeckdology aid in evaluating this
information. The Company generally owns the land bmilding or secures long-term leases for restasites, which ensures long-term
occupancy rights and helps control related coststdirant profitability for both the Company arahithisees is important; therefore, ongc
efforts are made to control average developmeris ¢beough construction and design efficienciemndardization and by leveraging the
Company’s global sourcing network. Additional infaation about the Company’s properties is incluseManagement’s discussion and
analysis of financial condition and results of @iems in Part Il, Item 7, pages 13 through 32 iarfEinancial statements and supplementary
data in Part Il, Item 8, pages 33 through 49 of fform 10-K.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company has pending a number of lawsuits et been filed from time to time in various juristiins. These lawsuits cover a broad
variety of allegations spanning the Compangntire business. The following is a brief deg@ipof the more significant of these categorie
lawsuits. In addition, the Company is subject tdouss federal, state and local regulations thatachwarious aspects of its business, as
discussed below. While the Company does not betieateany such claims, lawsuits or regulations hatve a material adverse effect on its
financial condition or results of operations, urdeable rulings could occur. Were an unfavorablenguto occur, there exists the possibility of
a material adverse impact on net income for thmgen which the ruling occurs or for future persd

* Shareholders

On April 2, 2004, a class action lawsuit was filedhe United States District Court for the North&istrict of Illinois (Case No. 04C-2422)
(Allan Selbst v. McDonald’s Corporation, Jack M.e&nberg, Matthew H. Paull and Michael J. Rober#iging violation of federal
securities laws. Two nearly identical actions warbsequently filed in the same court. On OctobeRW94, the lead plaintiff filed its
amended and consolidated class action complalagiad), among other things, that the Company adivitdual defendants misled investors
by issuing false and
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misleading financial reports and earnings projedtim a series of press releases and other puatensents between December 14, 2001 and
January 22, 2003, thereby overstating the Companwytent and anticipated earnings. The amended leamhgeeks class action certification,
unspecified compensatory damages, and attornegs’@ed costs. On January 18, 2005, the defendit@fmotion to dismiss the amended
complaint. On September 21, 2005, the Court dethisdnotion. The lead plaintiff then filed its Rilsmended Complaint on October 7, 2C
On November 16, 2005, the defendants moved to dssthe First Amended Complaint.

On July 9, 2004, the following shareholder derivataction was filed in the Circuit Court of Cook@y, Illinois, Chancery Division,
(Case No. 04CH10921Marilyn Clark, Derivatively on Behalf of McDonaklCorporation v. Jack M. Greenberg, Matthew H. Radichael
J. Roberts, James A. Skinner, Stanley R. SteimiaGantona, Fred L. Turner, Michael R. Quinlan,IHedams, Jr., Charles H. Bell, Edwa
A. Brennan, Robert A. Eckert, Enrique Hernandez, J&ranne P. Jackson, Donald G. Lubin, Walter Es$ég, Andrew J. McKenna, Cary
McMillan, John W. Rogers, Jr., Terry L. Savage, &dYy. Stone, and Robert N. ThurstcThis suit is purportedly brought on behalf of
McDonald’s Corporation against several of its cat@nd former directors and officers (collectivetdividual Defendants), and the
Corporation as a nhominal defendadlark contains allegations similar to the federal coorhplaint, with additional allegations that the
Individual Defendants participated in or failedpti@event the alleged securities fraud violationscdbed aboveClark alleges that these acts
omissions by the Individual Defendants constitugabhes of fiduciary duty, abuse of control, groégmanagement, waste of corporate
assets, and unjust enrichme@lark seeks judgment in favor of McDonald’s Corporation fl) unspecified damages sustained by the
Corporation; (2) injunctive relief restricting tipeoceeds of Individual Defendants’ trading actestior other assets to assure the Corporation
has an effective remedy; (3) restitution and diggarent of all profits, benefits and other compeansatind (4) attorneys’ fees and costs.

On January 30, 2006, the following shareholdenddirie action was filed in the Circuit Court of GoGounty, lllinois, Chancery
Division, (Case No. 06CHO0195(hilip Bufithis and Thomas Bauernfeind v.Hall Adadr., Edward A. Brennan, Robert A. Eckert, Jack M
Greenberg, Enrique Hernandez, Jr., Jeanne P. JatRéflter E. Massey, Andrew J. McKenna, Cary D. Maek| Matthew H. Paull,

Michael J. Roberts, John W. Rogers, Jr., Jamekiin8r, Ann-Marie Slaughter, and Roger W. Stongke Clark, this suit is purportedly
brought on behalf of McDonals'Corporation against several of its directordcefs and a former officer (collectively Individuakfendants
and the Corporation as a nominal defendBnfithis contains allegations similar to the lawsuits ddmiabove, claiming that from 2001 to
2003 the Individual Defendants participated in cgudesced to improper undisclosed accounting mestin alleged violation of federal
securities lawBufithisalleges that these acts or omissions by the Indalibefendants constitute breaches of fiduciary dad seeks
judgment in favor of McDona'’s for unspecified damages sustained by the Cotijporand unspecified equitable relief, as well tigraeys’
fees and costs.

The Company believes that it has substantial lagdlfactual defenses to the plaintiffs’ claims amdintend to defend these lawsuits
vigorously.

»  Obesity

On or about February 17, 2003, two minors, by tharents and guardians, filed an Amended Compéajainst McDonald's Corporation in
the United States District Court for the Southeistiict of New York (Case No.02 Civ. 7821 (RW®shley Pelman, a child under the ag
18 years, by her mother and natural guardian, Rtdb®&elman and Jazlen Bradley, a child under the afgE8 years, by her father and
natural guardian, Israel Bradley v. McDonald’s Camation) seeking class action status on behalf of indivislimNew York under the age
18 (and their parents and/or guardians), who becezhase or developed other adverse health condiibegedly from eating McDonald’s
products. On September 3, 2003, the Court dismigbedunts of the complaint with prejudice. OnuJary 25, 2005, following an appeal by
the plaintiffs, the Second Circuit Court of Appe@isurt vacated the District Court’s decision toniiss alleged violations of Section 349 of
the New York Consumer Protection Act as set fant@ounts I-1ll of the amended complaint.

On December 12, 2005, the plaintiffs filed theicaed amended complaint. In this complaint, thenpitis alleged that McDonald’s
Corporation: (1) engaged in a deceptive advertisargpaign to “be perceived to be less nutritiondéyrimental-than-in-fact”; (2) failed
adequately to disclose its use of certain additaresingredients; and (3) failed to provide nutrl information about its products. Plaintiffs
seek unspecified compensatory damages; an ordmtidyg defendants to label their individual produspecifying the fat, salt, sugar,
cholesterol and dietary content; an order prohibitnarketing to certain individuals; “funding of aducational program to inform children
and adults of the dangers of eating certain fosd&l by defendants; and attorneys’ fees and costs.

The Company believes that it has substantial lagdlfactual defenses to the plaintiffs’ claims amdintend to defend these lawsuits
vigorously.

* Brazil

On May 31, 2005, a public civil action was filedBnazil by the Federal Attorney’s Office for thedegal District against, among others,
McDonald’s Comércio de Alimentos Ltda, a wholly-aeehsubsidiary of the Company (McCal), and threéssdiormer employees. The
complaint alleges that McCal and its former empésymade an improper payment to obtain tax guidance
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relating to the deductibility of franchisee royaftstyments in Brazil. The complaint seeks certaimetary and non-monetary relief. Although
the Company does not believe that this actionldlle a material adverse effect on its financiabdton or results, it cannot predict the
outcome of this matter. The Company has also reddhte allegations to the Department of Justicetb@®ecurities and Exchange
Commission.

» Franchising

A substantial number of McDonaklrestaurants are franchised to independent eatreprs operating under contractual arrangemenistiae
Company. In the course of the franchise relatignahicasional disputes arise between the Compathijtsafranchisees relating to a broad
range of subjects including, but not limited toaljty, service and cleanliness issues, contentiegarding grants or terminations of
franchises, delinquent payments of rents and &esfranchisee claims for additional franchisesearites of franchises. Additionally,
occasional disputes arise between the Companynaindduals who claim they should have been graatéttDonald’s franchise.

e Suppliers

The Company and its affiliates and subsidiariesaosupply, with minor exceptions outside the Uf&od, paper or related items to any
McDonald’s restaurants. The Company relies uponaroms independent suppliers that are required &1 ared maintain the Compasyhigh
standards and specifications. On occasion, dispuiss between the Company and its suppliers am@ar of issues including, by way of
example, compliance with product specifications tmedCompany’s business relationship with suppliersddition, disputes occasionally
arise on a number of issues between the Companindivitluals or entities who claim that they shobkl (or should have been) granted the
opportunity to supply products or services to tleenpany’s restaurants.

» Employee:

Hundreds of thousands of people are employed bZtmepany and in restaurants owned and operatedidsydiaries of the Company. In
addition, thousands of people from time to timekssraployment in such restaurants. In the ordinaryrse of business, disputes arise
regarding hiring, firing, promotion and pay praes¢alleged discrimination and compliance with emient laws.

e Customers

The Company’s restaurants serve a large crosssaatttithe public. In the course of serving so mpegple, disputes arise as to products,
service, accidents, advertising, nutritional artteotlisclosures as well as other matters typicahoéxtensive restaurant business such as tha
of the Company.

* Intellectual property

The Company has registered trademarks and senddespipatents and copyrights, some of which areattrial importance to the
Company'’s business. From time to time, the Compaay become involved in litigation to defend andteobits use of its intellectual

property.
» Government regulations

Local, state and federal governments have adoptesl &nd regulations involving various aspects efrédstaurant business including, but not
limited to, franchising, health, safety, environmawning and employment. The Company strives taplg with all applicable existing
statutory and administrative rules and cannot ptetle effect on its operations from the issuarfcedditional requirements in the future.
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Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SHAREHOL DERS
None.

The following are the Executive Officers of our Corpany: (as of the date of this filing)

Ralph Alvarez50, is President of McDonald’s North America, aipos to which he was appointed in January 2005sklwed as President,
McDonald’s USA, from July 2004 to January 2005.rrrdanuary 2003 to July 2004, Mr. Alvarez servethasChief Operations Officer for
McDonald’s USA. Prior to that time he served assikient, Central Division—McDonald’s USA from Octo#901 to January 2003; President
of McDonald’s Mexico from November 2000 to Octo2@01; and Regional Director for Chipotle MexicarillGrom February 1999 to
November 2000. Except for a brief period in 1999, Mvarez has served the Company for 11 ye

Mary Dillon, 44, is Corporate Executive Vice President—GlobakeCMarketing Officer. She has served in that porisince joining the
Company in October 2005. Prior to joining the Compahe was appointed Division President of Quélkeds in 2004. Ms. Dillon served
Vice President of Marketing, Quaker Foods from 2@D2004; Vice President of Marketing, Gatorade Brmpel Fithess Waters from 200(
2002; Senior Vice President of Marketing, Gardegbkurinc. from 1996 to 2000; and Director of PradDéferings, Snapple Natural
Beverages from 1995 to 1996.

Denis Hennequird7, is President of McDonald’'s Europe, a positmmhich he was appointed in July 2005. From 1998utg 2005, he
served as President and Managing Director for Meliia France. Prior to that, he served as Vice Presafédperations, Human Resourc
Development and Regional Coordination for McDonglgfance. Mr. Hennequin has been with the Compang5 years.

Matthew H. Paull54, is Corporate Senior Executive Vice Presidedt@hief Financial Officer. From July 2001 to Jur@®2 he was
Corporate Executive Vice President and Chief Firedr@fficer. Prior to that time, he served as SeMe President, Corporate Tax and
Finance from December 2000 to July 2001, SenioeWresident from January 2000 to December 200 aredPresident from June 1993 to
January 2000. Mr. Paull has been with the Company2 years.

David M. Pojman46, is Corporate Senior Vice President—Controdgupsition he has held since March 2002. He seasedice President
and Assistant Corporate Controller from January02@0March 2002; and from July 1997 to January 20@0served as Vice President—
International Controller. Mr. Pojman has been wfith Company for 23 years.

Michael J. Roberts55, is President and Chief Operating Officer, a pmsvhich he was elected on November 22, 2004adsmhas served as
a Director since that date. Previously, he was {Executive Officer—McDonald’s USA from July 2004 ovember 2004 and prior to that,
President—-McDonald’s USA from June 2001. From 2997 to June 2001, Mr. Roberts was President, Wiestion—McDonald’s USA.

Mr. Roberts has been with the Company for 28 years.

Gloria Santonapb, is Corporate Executive Vice President, Genéoainsel and Secretary, a position she has held dinlg 2003. From June
2001 to July 2003, she was Corporate Senior ViesiBent, General Counsel and Secretary. From Deze2@®0 to June 2001, she was \
President, U.S. General Counsel and Secretary. Ftaroh 1997 to December 2000, she was Vice Presibeputy General Counsel and
Secretary. Ms. Santona has been with the ComparB8fgears.

James A. Skinne61, is Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officepast to which he was elected on November 22, 280d also has
served as a Director since that date. He serviticasChairman from January 2003 to November 20@#anPresident and Chief Operating
Officer of McDonald’s Worldwide Restaurant Grouprt February 2002 to December 2002. Prior to ttegdrved as President and Chief
Operating Officer of McDonald’s Europe, Asia/PacifMiddle East and Africa from June 2001 to Feby002; and President of
McDonald’s Europe from December 1997 to June 2801 Skinner has been with the Company for 35 years.
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Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock trades under the syM@i and is listed on the New York and Chicago stexghanges in the U.S.

The following table sets forth the common stoclc@rianges on the New York Stock Exchange comptagiteand dividends declared
per common share.

2005 2004
Dividend Dividend

DOLLARS PER SHARE High Low High Low
Quatrter:
First 34.5¢ 30.81 — 29.9¢ 24.5¢ —
Seconc 31.91 27.7¢ — 29.4: 25.0¢ —
Third 35.07 27.3¢ .67 28.2F 25.6¢ .55
Fourth 35.6¢ 31.4¢ —  32.9¢ 27.31 —
Year 35.6¢ 27.3¢ .67 32.9¢ 24.5¢ .55

The number of shareholders of record and benefisialers of the Company’common stock as of January 31, 2006 was estinates
950,000.

Given the Company'’s returns on equity and assedsagement believes it is prudent to reinvest irketarwith acceptable returns
and/or opportunity for long-term growth and useessccash flow for debt repayments and returning ttashareholders either through share
repurchases or dividends. The Company has paidatidis on common stock for 30 consecutive yearsighir@005 and has increased the
dividend amount at least once every year. As irpt, further dividends will be considered aftriewing dividend yields, profitability
expectations and financing needs and will be dedlat the discretion of the Company’s Board of Elmes.

The following table presents information relateadepurchases of common stock the Company madegdtinthree months ended
December 31, 2005.

Issuer purchases of equity securit

Total number of .
Maximum dollar amount

Total number of Average price shares purchased

shares purchase paid per share under the program* that may yet be purchase
Period under the program
October -31, 200E 1,083,271 $ 32.9i 1,083,27! $ 2,230,750,00
November -30, 200& 787,50( $ 32.5:% 787,50( $ 2,205,129,00
December -31, 200& 365,35¢ $ 33.8¢ 365,35¢ $ 2,192,770,00
Total 2,236,13 $ 32.9¢ 2,236,13: $ 2,192,770,00

* In October 2001, the Company announced that its@oéDirectors authorized a $5.0 billion share tephase program with no specifi
expiration date. In accordance with the Companmteiinal policy, Company repurchases of shares waade only during limited
timeframes in each mont

The following table summarizes information about equity compensation plans as of December 31, .2808utstanding awards
relate to our Common Stock. Shares issued undef #ik following plans may be from the Companyé&asury, newly issued or both.

Equity compensation plan informati

Number of securities

Number of securitie: remaining available for
Weighted-average future issuance under
to be issued exercise price of equity compensation plan
upon exercise of outstanding options
outstanding options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérsld 86,384,140 $ 24.9¢ 54,840,39
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotglers 52,497,009 $ 35.27

Total 138,881,14 $ 28.8( 54,840,39




(€3

(@)

Includes stock options outstanding under the falhigwlans: 2001 Omnibus Stock Ownership 56,078,131 shares; 1992 Stock
Ownership Incentive Plan (1992 Plan)-26,373,63%afal975 Stock Ownership Option Plan (1975 Plar§33,970 shares; and Non-
Employee Director Stock Option P-161,332 shares. Also includes 2,537,073 restristedk units granted under the McDonald’s
Corporation 2001 Omnibus Stock Ownership P

Includes stock options outstanding under the falhgwlans: 1992 Pla—51,451,254; 1975 Plan—1,000,000; and 1999 Non-Gygsd
Director Stock Option Ple-45,750.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
11-year summary

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE

DATA 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Compan-operated sale $15,35: 14,22¢ 12,79¢ 11,50C 11,04: 10,467 9,51z 8,89t 8,13¢
Franchised and affiliated revent $ 5,10¢ 4,841 4,34% 3,90¢ 3,82¢ 3,77¢ 3,747 3,52¢ 3,27¢
Total revenues $20,46( 19,06 17,14( 15,40¢ 14,87( 14,24:13,25¢12,42: 11,40¢:
Operating income $ 4,024 35419 2,83/ 2110 2,691® 3,33( 3,32( 2,767 2,80¢
Income before taxes and cumulative effect of

accounting change: $ 3,702 3,200 2,34€® 1,662 2,33(® 2,882 2,88< 2,301 2,407
Net income $ 2,60:12 227¢) 1,47148 89359 1,6371® 1,977 1,94¢ 1,55(10 1,647
Cash provided by operations $ 4,33i 3,90¢  3,26¢ 2,89( 2,68¢ 2,751 3,00¢ 2,76¢ 2,44
Capital expenditures $ 1,60 1,41¢ 1,307 2,004 1,90¢ 1,94t 1,86¢ 1,87¢ 2,111
Treasury stock purchases $ 1,22¢ 605 43¢ 687 1,09C 2,00z 93: 1,162 76k
Common stock cash dividends $ 84z 69t 504 297 28¢ 281 265 23¢ 221
Financial position at year end:
Total asset $29,98¢ 27,83t 25,83t 24,19« 22,53t 21,68:20,98:19,78: 18,24::
Total debt $10,14( 9,22C 9,731 9,97¢ 8,91¢ 8,47¢ 7,25z 7,04:  6,46:
Total shareholde’ equity $15,14¢ 14,207 11,98 10,28: 9,48¢ 9,20¢ 9,63¢ 9,46t 8,85:
Shares outstandirIN MILLIONS 1,26: 1,27C 1,26z 1,26¢ 1,281 1,30% 1,351 1,35¢ 1,371
Per common share;
Net incomediluted $ 2.0402 17¢® 11548  7¢69 1280 14€ 1.3¢ 1.1(M 1.1F
Dividends declare $ .67 55 A4C .24 .28 222 2C .18 1€
Market price at year er $ 33.7- 32.0¢ 24.8: 16.0¢ 26.47 34.0C 40.31 38.41 23.8¢
Compan-operated restaurar 9,28: 9,21z  8,95¢ 9,00( 8,37¢ 7,65z 6,05¢ 5,43: 4,88i
Franchised restaurar 18,33: 18,24¢ 18,13: 17,86« 17,39¢ 16,79¢15,94¢15,08¢ 14,197
Affiliated restaurant: 4,26¢ 4,101 4,03¢ 4,24¢ 4,32C 4,26C 4,301 3,99¢ 3,84
Total Systemwide restaurants 31,88¢ 31,56 31,12¢ 31,10¢ 30,09: 28,707126,30¢24,51! 22,92¢.

Franchised and affiliated sale$'® $38,92¢ 37,06 33,137 30,02¢ 29,59( 29,71:28,97¢27,08: 25,50::

(€3

(@)

(©)

4)

®)

(6)

@

®)

Includes $191 million ($130 million after tax or.0 per share) of sha-based and related compensation due to the adopfitine
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SF¥&)23(R), “Share-Based Payment,” on January 1,2@ee Summary of
significant accounting policies note to the cordaled financial statements for further deta

Includes a net tax benefit of $73 million ($0.05 gleare) comprised of $179 million ($0.14 per shdex benefit due to a favorak
audit settlement of the Company’s 2000-2002 U>Sraturns and $106 million ($0.09 per share) ofrémental tax expense resulting
from the decision to repatriate foreign earningslanthe Homeland Investment A

Includes pretax operating charges of $130 milliefated to asset/goodwill impairment and $160 mill{$21 million related to 200
and $139 million related to prior years) for a cention in the Company’s lease accounting practames policies (see Impairment and
other charges (credits), net note to the consoéiddinancial statements for further details), adlwae a nonoperating gain of $49
million related to the sale of the Company’s inttri@ a U.S. real estate partnership, for a totettax expense of $241 million ($172
million after tax or $0.13 per share

Includes pretax charges of $408 million ($323 miiliafter tax or $0.25 per share) primarily relatedthe disposition of certain n-
McDonalds brands and asset/goodwill impairment. See Intpaint and other charges (credits), net note to tresolidated financial
statements for further detail

Includes pretax charges of $853 million ($700 miiliafter tax or $0.55 per share) primarily relatedrestructuring certair
international markets and eliminating positionsstaurant closings/asset impairment and the \-off of technology cost

Includes pretax operating charges of $378 millisimavrily related to the U.S. business reorganizatand other global chanc
initiatives, and restaurant closings/asset impaintinas well as net pretax nonoperating income o5&hilion primarily related to a
gain on the initial public offering of McDon¢es Japan, for a total pretax expense of $253 mill{$143 million after tax or $0.11 per
share).

Includes pretax charges of $322 million ($219 miiliafter tax or $0.16 per share) consisting of $iififion of Made For You costs ali
$160 million related to a home office productivititiative.

Includes a $37 million after tax charge ($0.03 phare) to reflect the cumulative effect of the didopof SFAS No.14 Accounting fo



Asset Retirement Obligatio” which requires legal obligations associated witte retirement of long-lived assets to be recoghiate
their fair value at the time the obligations areimred. See Summary of significant accounting pegicote to the consolidated financ
statements for further detail

© Includes a $99 million after tax charge ($0.07 pbare) to reflect the cumulative effect of the awopof SFAS No.14:“Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS No.142), which alatés the amortization of goodwill and instead eaty it to annual impairment
tests. Adjusted for the nonamortization provisiohSFAS No0.142, net income per common share wewiel bheen $0.02 higher in 2001
and 2000 and $0.01 higher in 1<1996.

10 While franchised and affiliated sales are not refzat as revenues by the Company, management belwyeare important in
understanding the Company’s financial performaneeduse these sales are the basis on which the Gonuadculates and records
franchised and affiliated revenues and are indieaidf the financial health of the franchisee b
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
OVERVIEW
Description of the business

The Company primarily franchises and operates Mellis restaurants. In addition, the Company opsredgtain non-McDonald’s brands
that are not material to the Company’s overall tss®f the more than 30,000 McDonald’s restauramntsver 100 countries, over 8,000 are
operated by the Company, more than 18,000 are tepkby franchisees/licensees and over 4,000 amatgokby affiliates. Under our
conventional franchise arrangement, franchiseegqea portion of the required capital by initialiwesting in the equipment, signs, seating
and décor of their restaurant businesses, anditnyesting in the business over time. The Compangsotlie land and building or secures
long-term leases for both Company-operated andffiaad restaurant sites. This ensures long-termpaecy rights, helps control related
costs and improves alignment with franchisees. Undedevelopmental license arrangement, licengemsde capital for 100% of the
business, including the real estate interest, whi#eCompany generally has no capital invested.

While we view ourselves primarily as a franchisee, continually review our restaurant ownership (tivat is our mix between
Company-operated, conventional franchise, jointwenor developmental license) to deliver a great@amer experience and drive
profitability, with a focus on underperforming matk& and markets where direct restaurant operagiars lis unattractive due to market size,
business conditions or legal considerations. Algfodirect restaurant operation is more capitalrsitee relative to franchising and results in
lower operating margins as a percent of revenuesipany-operated restaurants are important to aaess in both mature and developing
markets. In our Company-operated restaurants aldthgour franchisees, we can develop and refingaip®y standards, marketing concepts
and product and pricing strategies, so that wedhtce Systemwide only those that we believe ard beficial. In addition, we firmly
believe that owning restaurants is paramount togaicredible franchisor. Our Company-operatedrassi also helps to facilitate changes in
restaurant ownership as warranted by strategidaderations, the financial health of franchiseesther factors.

Revenues consist of sales by Company-operatediraata and fees from restaurants operated by fiseeh and affiliates. These fees
primarily include rent, service fees and/or roytthat are based on a percent of sales, withfeggeoiinimum rent payments. Fees vary by
type of site, amount of Company investment andllbuainess conditions. These fees, along with oa@eop and operating rights, are
stipulated in franchise/license agreements tha¢igdiy have 20-year terms.

The business is managed as distinct geographicesggnunited States; Europe; Asia/Pacific, Middéstand Africa (APMEA); Latin
America; and Canada. In addition, throughout thjort we present a segment entitled “Other” theluites non-McDonald’s brands (e.qg.,
Boston Market and Chipotle Mexican Grill (Chipojleyhe U.S. and Europe segments each account fooamately 35% of total revenues.
France, Germany and the United Kingdom, collectivatcount for over 60% of Europe’s revenues; Aalisty China and Japan (a 508&mnec
affiliate accounted for under the equity method)lectively, account for nearly 50% of APME#revenues; and Brazil accounts for over «
of Latin America’s revenues. These seven marketsgalith the U.S. and Canada are referred to agofmaarkets” throughout this report
and comprise approximately 70% of total revenues.

In analyzing business trends, management consadeasiety of performance and financial measurelsidticg comparable sales growth,
Systemwide sales growth, operating margins andngtu

« Constant currency results exclude the effects @i currency translation and are calculated aggiating current year results at
prior year average exchange rates. Managementweward analyzes business results in constant @ieseand bases certain
compensation plans on these results because thpabgrbelieves they better represent the underlyirginess trend:

* Comparable sales are a key performance indicatat within the retail industry and are indicativeaateptance of the Company’s
initiatives as well as local economic and consutreards. Increases or decreases in comparablereglesent the percent change in
constant currency sales from the same period iptioe year for all McDonald’s restaurants in opina at least thirteen months,
including those temporarily closed. Some of theso@a restaurants may be temporarily closed inalode construction, reimaging
or remodeling, and natural disasters. McDonald®res on a calendar basis and therefore the coiiipraf the same month,
quarter and year with the corresponding periodhefgrior year will be impacted by the mix of dayee number of weekdays,
weekend days and timing of holidays in a given frarae can have a positive or negative impact onparable sales. The
Company refers to this impact as the calendar/shifing day adjustment. This impact varies gedgicgly due to consumer
spending patterns and has the greatest impact athija@omparable sales. Typically, the annual intji@minimal, with the
exception of leap year

» Systemwide sales include sales at all McDonaldés@ther restaurants, whether operated by the Copparfranchisees or by
affiliates. While sales by franchisees and afi@gfre not recorded as revenues by the Com
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management believes the information is importaniriderstanding the Company’s financial performaragause it is the basis on
which the Company calculates and records franchasedaffiliated revenues and is indicative of timaricial health of our
franchisee basi

* Return on incremental invested capital (ROIIC) imeasure reviewed by management over a one-yeampgmod as well as longer
time periods to evaluate the overall profitabilifiythe business units, the effectiveness of cagigployed and the future allocation
of capital. The return is calculated by taking tloastant foreign exchange rate change in operatewne plus depreciation and
amortization (numerator) and dividing this by tlumstant foreign exchange rate adjusted cash useaviesting activities
(denominator). The calculation assumes an averagfeaage rate over the periods included in the ¢aticun.

Strategic direction and financial performance

The Company’s 50 years of success has been drwéretstrength of McDonald’s global brand and anique business relationship among
franchisees, suppliers and the Company (collegtireferred to as the System). This business madeady to our success, fostering our ability
to be locally relevant, a competitor in the markatp and a contributor to our communities. Thiatsgic alignment enables the System to
pursue innovative ideas that satisfy our custoramdsprofitably grow our business.

In 2003, the Company initiated a comprehensivetaization plan focused on maximizing customersfatition and strengthening our
financial position. We redefined our strategy topdasize growth through adding more customers ttiagirestaurants and aligned the
System around our customer-focused Plan to Wirorhkination of custometentric initiatives designed to deliver operatioeatellence an
leadership marketing were implemented around fixeeds of exceptional customer experiences—pequlajucts, place, price and
promotion.

In 2004, we substantially achieved our near-teralgby executing our strategy. We improved thestafmany of our core menu
offerings and introduced a variety of menu choites were well received by customers such as néand $iaes, breakfast and chicken
offerings. We offered a variety of price pointsajgpeal to a broad spectrum of customers. We stieasnprocesses such as new product
development and restaurant operations, improvedraining programs, and implemented performancesomes, including a restaurant rev
and measurement process, to enable and motivathfses and restaurant employees to serve cusi@etter. We also launched the “i'm
lovin’ it” marketing theme, which achieved high &g of customer awareness worldwide.

Throughout 2005, we remained aligned and focuseekenuting the Plan to Win, using our customer+aephilosophy as our guide.
Our 2005 performance reflected our continuouslyhgrg customer relevance and powerful brand stietigsit culminated with December
2005 marking our 32nd consecutive month of posighadal comparable sales. In the U.S., our stragssmomentum continued as increased
customer demand for our core and premium prodbotskfast menu and more convenient hours fuelegthron top of strong prior year
comparisons. In Europe, we focused on gainingitla@nd building momentum across the entire segnv#athad success in France and
Russia and we gained traction in Germany whereomests responded favorably to our Ein Mal Eins (“bgeone”) value platform and
premium products like Salads Plus. The U.K. renthimehallenging marketplace and our efforts to g@iction in this market will take time.
We are encouraged by our progress in Europe arfitleonthat our focus on enhancing customers’ eepee through menu, marketing and
value initiatives will generate improvements ovare.

Over the past three years, in line with our commaitirto revitalize the brand, we have exercisedtgrdamancial discipline. We
delivered against the targets laid out in our edization plan and achieved many significant mdess. Today, our resulting financial stren
and substantial cash generating ability is a testano System alignment and focus on growing oistieg restaurant business. Our progress
has created the opportunity to return even greaterunts of cash flow to shareholders through divildeand share repurchases after funding
investments in our business that offer solid refum 2005, we increased the dividend to $.67 pares a 185% increase from the 2002
dividend and we repurchased over $2.2 billion shown stock since the beginning of 2003 to enhahaeeholder value.
Highlights from the year included:

* Comparable sales increased 3.9% building on a @8#éase in 2004.

» Systemwide sales increased 6%. Excluding the pesitipact of currency translation, Systemwide saleseased 5%.

» Consolidated revenues increased 7% to a recorddfigher $20 billion. Excluding the positive impaxdtcurrency translation,
revenues increased 6'

* Netincome per common share was $2.04 comparedbi#® in 2004

» Cash from operations increased $433 million to $lln.

e Capital expenditures were about $1.6 billion.

* The annual dividend was increased 22% per sha&.6¥ or $842 million.
e Share repurchases totaled about $1.2 billion.

* One-year ROIIC was 46.0% and three-year ROIIC v#a8% for 2005. The decrease in Impairment and atharges (credits)
included in operating income benefited these rat@Mhpercentage points and 18 percentage poistsectvely. (See Other matters
for details of the calculation
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On January 1, 2005, the Company early adoptedttdierSent of Financial Accounting Standards No.123fRare-Based Payment
(SFAS No.123(R)). This new accounting standardirequall shardsased payments to employees, including grants pfame stock option:
to be recognized in the income statement basedeinfair values. The Company adopted this accagrttieatment prospectively. In
connection with the adoption, the Company adjutitecmix of employee long-term incentive-based camsp&on by reducing stock options
awarded and increasing certain cash-based compan§atimarily annual incentive-based compensatamj other equity-based awards.
Share-based compensation was included as a pra fdisolosure in the notes to the consolidated Giizistatements for years prior to the
adoption. In 2005, share-based and related compengxpense was $0.10 per share. The pro forma4l@sed compensation for 2004 and
2003 was $0.11 per share and $0.17 per sharectiashe.

During 2005, the Company repatriated approximab8lyillion of foreign historical earnings under tHemeland Investment Act (HIA
A majority of the repatriation was funded throughdl borrowings in certain markets, which total@d9billion. This resulted in an increase
in cash and debt on our consolidated balance sigetr end, which is expected to be temporarydaed not signal any change in our
financial and capital discipline. The repatriatedte will primarily be used to fund capital expendis under our remodeling initiative, new
restaurant openings and salaries in the U.S. Apart HIA-related activity, the Company paid downeo1.2 billion of debt during 2005.

Outlook for 2006

The Company’s long-term goal is to create a difiéeged customer experience—one that builds brayalty and delivers long term,
profitable growth for all shareholders and the 8ystOur long term goals remain unchanged: averagesh Systemwide sales and revenue
growth of 3% to 5%, average annual operating incgmeith of 6% to 7%, and annual returns on incraalénvested capital in the high
teens. These goals exclude the impact of foreigrenay translation.

Our guiding customer-centric framework, the Plai\io, remains solidly in place. We plan to creatrenrelevant and deeper
connections with our customers by capturing sigaiit opportunities within the five fundamental @rns of our plan—-people, products, plac
price and promotion. The initiatives around eachc¢@htinuously evolve to maximize customer relevaaad System profitability. We are
confident that our Plan, supported by our unigustesy of franchisees and suppliers and our colleclignment will continue to drive long
term profitable growth and enhance shareholderevalu

In 2006, we remain committed to offering qualitpgucts that satisfy our customers’ demands foraghand variety, promoting the
importance of physical activity and providing ntitmal information on our food packaging. We witintinue to introduce locally relevant
new products that complement our core menu andgeaustomers with more reasons to visit, morenofie the U.S., we will extend the
variety of our salad and chicken lines with theadtiction of an Asian chicken salad, and we exfrestrengthen our share of the growing
chicken sandwich market with our premium Spicy ®bit Sandwich. In Europe, we are continuing our $omo our everyday value menus,
such as Ein Mal Eins and Pound Saver along withpne offerings including salads and sandwiches ssctine Big Tasty. In Asia, where
rice is a daily staple, we successfully introduaadnnovative rice burger in 2005 in Taiwan—Kalbbef or Spicy Chicken served on a
lightly toasted rice patty—and have plans to extisl concept to other Asian markets in 2006.

Delivering value through a variety of menu pricén® that appeal to our broad range of customesddray been part of our history. A
strong balance of core menu favorites, premium yetedand everyday value ensures that we can afmpeaist people. In Europe and
elsewhere, we continue to combine everyday valdie avstrong trade-up strategy to remain relevatdday’s customer and drive
profitability.

We also plan to capitalize on opportunities to iayerthe customer experience in our restaurantsigifirénproved service and
ambiance. We continue to implement people traipirgggrams to enhance the overall service experiandeve will extend our Restaurant
Operation Improvement Process (ROIP) measuremesstdurant execution to even more markets this @aa remodeling efforts will
continue around the globe. In 2006, 2,500 restasinanridwide are expected to be remodeled, utdjzimovative, modern designs. We will
continue to enhance customer convenience by extgragierating hours, accepting debit, credit andogifds, enabling wireless internet
access and adding double drive thru lanes in sedstdurants.

We believe providing information on nutrition andmoting physical activity support our customerséds to make the best choices for
their lifestyles. Starting in 2006, we will provideitrition information on the majority of our fogéckaging using an easy to understand icon
and bar chart format. We plan to implement the pawskaging in more than 20,000 restaurants by tHeoéthe year. We are the first quick-
service restaurant to do this, guided by customautiand independent experts from around the world.

In connection with executing the Plan to Win, t@nove local relevance, profitability and returng gontinually evaluate ownership
structures in our markets to identify potential gi@nal and growth opportunities. The ownershig mia given market depends on our plans
for the market, local operating conditions, resaatiievel results in the market and legal and &gy constraints. In the United States,
France, Germany and Australia, for example, weslelihat our current ownership mix is appropriatkght of current operating results. By
contrast, we plan to re-franchise at least 50 Catyymgperated restaurants in the U.K. in 2006 and
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we expect that the percentage of Company-operagtdurants in that market will continue to decfioen its current 63%. In Canada, we
plan to review our Company-operated restaurantdatetrmine the most appropriate ownership mix agdrize personnel around a revised
structure for the business. In countries wherechigging is not yet a well established business madeh as China or Russia, we will
continue to own and operate our restaurants.

We have also recently identified between 15 andhatkets where we will pursue converting our exgtinvnership to a developmental
licensee structure over the next three years. Uthigestructure, which the Company successfully leggin 32 countries outside the U.S.
(approximately 800 restaurants), the licenseestbeibusiness, including the real estate interestuse their local knowledge and their
capital to build the brand and optimize sales awditability over the long-term. Included in the32 countries were two additional markets
(325 restaurants) that became developmental liesriae2005 and work on this change of ownershimbegcouple of years ago. While the
Company generally has no capital invested in tps bf market, it does receive a royalty based paraent of sales. The royalty rate varies
by market and is based on growth and profitabdportunity within the market.

Our plans to change our ownership mix through cotigeal re-franchising and increased use of devataptal licenses will affect our
results. The results of Company-operated restasigantrecorded in our consolidated financial statés) and we are responsible for their
ongoing capital investments, whereas restaurarsatgd under franchise or license agreements genergenue streams without a
comparable level of capital investment by us. Wandbexpect that the financial impact of our plemadjust our ownership mix will be
material in 2006 given the time required to exethése plans.

Our plans to convert markets to a developmentahBe structure depend on our ability to identifyspective licensees with the
experience and financial resources to be effecparators of McDonald's restaurants. We are irpttoeess of identifying potential licensees
in some of these markets, but we cannot predict dnaekly we will complete transactions. The markibigt we have targeted as candidates
for developmental licenses had in the aggregatatah00 restaurants (predominately Company-opdéyated in 2005 had $1.5 billion in
sales, $50 million in capital expenditures, $100iom in selling, general & administrative expensesl generated a modest operating loss.

At December 31, 2005, the Company’s net investrmetitese markets was about $1.6 billion. As a tesfubur annual testing, we
recorded impairment charges for some of these rtmnkehe last three years. For others, currert @as/s or undiscounted projected cash
flows are such that no impairment charges wereireguin each case, our impairment testing wasdasghe assumption that these markets
will continue to be operated under the existing emship structure. We will continue our annual innpent testing for these assets based on
this assumption until it becomes probable thahadaction will occur within 12 months, and we caasonably estimate our sales proceeds.
We may not recover our entire net investment imerddchese markets and may therefore record lasdesure periods as we adjust our
ownership mix. The timing and amount of any loss#éisdepend on the circumstances of each transacGairrently, we do not believe that
any significant transactions are likely to be coetgdl within 12 months.

While the Company does not provide specific guigame earnings per share, the following informat®provided to assist in analyzi
the Company’s results.

» Changes in constant currency Systemwide salesi@endy changes in comparable sales and restaun@rgxpansion. The
Company expects net restaurant additions to addtdbpercentage point to sales growth in 2006 ¢imstant currencies). Most of
this anticipated growth will result from restaurmopened in 200!

« The Company does not provide specific guidancehamges in comparable sales. However, as a pengpeasisuming no change in
cost structure, a 1 percentage point increase$n thmparable sales would increase annual earpegrgshare by about 2 cents.
Similarly, an increase of 1 percentage point indpefs comparable sales would increase annual egpier share by about 1.5
cents.

» The Company expects full-year 2006 selling, gengratiministrative expenses to increase at a ratetlgan Systemwide sales, in
constant currencies, and to decline as a perceewehues, compared with 2005 without considermgimpact of changes in
ownership mix

» A significant part of the Compangoperating income is generated outside the Unf.ahout 80% of its total debt is denominate
foreign currencies. Accordingly, earnings are affddy changes in foreign currency exchange rataticularly the Euro and the
British Pound. If the Euro and the British Poundhomove 10% in the same direction compared wittb2@fe Company’s annual
earnings per share would change about 6 centsénts. Based on current rates, foreign currencyskation is expected to
negatively affect earnings in the first quarter &(

e The Company plans to return to pre-HIA debt andhdesgels as we pay down debt over the next couipjears. The late 2005
borrowings, used to fund dividend payments to mégiat earnings back to the U.S. parent-companyltexsin a temporary increase
in both cash and debt on our year-end consolidadéahce sheet. However, our net debt position ggdebt outstanding less cash
available for investment) has improved significgnéxcluding this one-time opportunity. The Compampects interest expense in
2006 to increase 7% to 9% compared with 2005, basedlirrent interest and foreign currency exchaatgs. We expect this
increase will be partly offset by the related higimeerest income from cash available for investiregulting in a 4% to 6% increase
in interest expense, net of interest inco

16 McDonalc's Corporatior



» The Company expects the effective income tax @téhie full year 2006 to be approximately 31% t&3although some volatility
may be experienced between the quarters in theal@mwarse of busines

» The Company expects capital expenditures for 20 tapproximately $1.8 billion.

* In 2006 and 2007 combined, the Company expecsttor between $5 billion and $6 billion to shareless through a combination
of shares repurchased and dividends. The Compascexto complete share repurchases of about iginbih the first quarter of
2006.

e In January 2006, Chipotle completed an initial pubffering of 6.1 million shares resulting in pemxls of approximately $120
million to Chipotle. McDonald’s sold 3.0 million @otle shares resulting in proceeds to the Compdi$61 million, while still
remaining the majority shareholder. As a resuthefoffering, the Company will record a pretax npei@ting gain of about $50
million in the first quarter of 200¢

» During the first quarter 2006, the Company hasrate¥tain actions to improve profitability in twballenging markets. In Brazil,
we reached an agreement to acquire restaurantategdsy several litigating franchisees and expeaidur pretax charges of
approximately $20 million. In the U.K., as partao§trategic review of its “high street” locatiotise Company has developed a plan
that focuses on improving profits of those sitescdnnection with that plan, we expect to closeezfaurants in the U.K. in the first
quarter 2006, resulting in lease cancellation ahédracharges of approximately $40 million pret

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS
Operating results

2005 2004 2003
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, Increase/ Increase/
EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA Amount (decrease Amount (decrease Amount
Revenues
Sales by Compair-operated restaurar $15,35: 8% $14,22¢ 11%  $12,79¢
Revenues from franchised and affiliated restaur 5,10¢ 6 4,841 11 4,34t
Total revenues 20,46( 7 19,06 11 17,14(
Operating costs and expense
Compan-operated restaurant expen 13,11 8 12,10( 10 11,00¢
Franchised restaura-occupancy expens: 1,022 2 1,002 7 93¢
Selling, general & administrative expen: 2,221 12 1,98( 8 1,83:
Impairment and other charges (credits), (28) nm 29C (29 40¢
Other operating expense, 1 11C 27 151 23 122
Total operating costs and expense 16,43¢ 6 15,52/ 8 14,30¢
Operating income 4,02z 14 3,541 25 2,832
Interest expens 35¢€ (@) 35¢ (8) 38¢
Nonoperating (income) expense, (36) 78 (20 nm 98
Income before provision for income taxes and cumutave effect of
accounting change 3,70z 16 3,20z 36 2,34¢
Provision for income taxe 1,10(C 19 924 10 83¢
Income before cumulative effect of accounting charg 2,60z 14 2,27¢ 51 1,50¢
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of 1 nm (37
Net income $ 2,60z 14% $ 2,27¢ 550 $ 1,471
Per common shar+diluted:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting chargg $ 2.04 14% $ 1.7¢ 520 $ 1.1¢
Cumulative effect of accounting chanc nm (.03
Net income $ 2.04 14% $ 1.7¢ 56% $ 1.1f
Weighted average common shares outstandi—diluted 1,274.. 1,273.% 1,276.%

* See Accounting changes section for further disons
nm Not meaningful
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Net income and diluted net income per common share

In 2005, net income and diluted net income per comshare were $2,602 million and $2.04, respegtives a result of the adoption of
SFAS No0.123(R) and the related compensation re2@5 net income included $130 million or $0.10 gleaire of share-based and related
compensation expense. The 2005 results also intlacdet tax benefit of $73 million or $0.05 perreheomprised of $179 million or $0.14
per share tax benefit due to a favorable auditeseént of the Company’s 2000-2002 U.S. tax retam $106 million or $0.09 per share of
incremental tax expense resulting from the decigiarpatriate foreign earnings under HIA. In aiddif 2005 included impairment and other
charges and credits that netted to $28 millionrefgx income ($12 million income after tax or $0diincome per share).

In 2004, net income and diluted net income per comshare were $2,279 million and $1.79, respegtif@ $1.68 per share including
pro forma share-based compensation expense of $erlshare). The 2004 results included pretax ¢ipgraharges of $160 million ($105
million after tax or $0.08 per share) related tease accounting correction and $130 million ($tiikion after tax or $0.09 per share) related
to asset and goodwill impairment charges, primanilgouth Korea. In 2004, results also includedgx@onoperating income of $49 million
(%49 million after tax or $0.04 per share) relatioghe sale of the Company’s interest in a U.8l estate partnership that resulted in the
utilization of certain previously unrealized capltsss carryforwards.

In 2003, net income and diluted net income per comshare after cumulative effect of accounting deawere $1,471 million and
$1.15, respectively (or $0.98 per share includirgfprma share-based compensation expense of $@rishare). The 2003 results included
net pretax charges of $408 million ($323 millioteattax or $0.25 per share) primarily related ® disposition of certain non-McDonald’s
brands and asset and goodwill impairment, primamiliyatin America.

Refer to the Impairment and other charges (creditsf)section as well as the Summary of signifieatibunting policies note to the
consolidated financial statements for further désbon.

For 2005, diluted weighted average shares outstgndéere relatively flat compared to 2004. Shardstanding at the beginning of 2C
were higher than the prior year due to stock ogtiexercised exceeding treasury stock purchasedgd€04. Treasury stock purchased in
2005 offset this higher balance as well as the anphoptions exercised during the year.

In 2004, diluted weighted average shares outstgraticreased compared to 2003. Shares outstanding béginning of the year were
lower than the prior year due to treasury stockpased exceeding stock options exercised in 2608y mffset by a higher dilutive effect of
stock options outstanding.

Impact of foreign currencies on reported results
While changing foreign currencies affect reportesuits, McDonald’s mitigates exposures, where acty financing in local currencies,
hedging certain foreign-denominated cash flows, @mdhasing goods and services in local currencies.

In 2005, revenues were positively impacted by thezlian Real and the Canadian Dollar, but opeggititome and net income were
minimally impacted by foreign currency translatidine Euro had a minimal impact on reported resuit2004 and 2003, foreign currency
translation had a positive impact on consolidatga@nues, operating income and net income due tstithegthening of several major
currencies, primarily the Euro.

Impact of foreign currency translation on reportesults

Currency translation

Reported amount benefit/(cost)

IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
Revenue! $20,46( $19,06F $17,14( $23¢ $77S¢ $88¢€
Company-operated margifis 2,09¢ 2,00z 1,69¢ 19 91 101
Franchised margin® 4,07¢ 3,83 3,40¢ 15 13¢ 19t
Selling, general & administrative expen: 2,221 1,98( 183 (17 (57 (69
Operating incom: 4,022 3,541 2,83 11 16C 18¢
Income before cumulative effect of accounting chee 2,60z 2,27¢ 1,50¢ 1 80 89
Net income 2,60z 2,27¢ 1,471 1 80 89
Per common sha-diluted:

Income before cumulative effect of accounting chee 2.04 1.7¢ 1.1¢ — .06 .07

Net income 2.04 1.7¢ 1.1t — .06 .07

@  Includes McDonal’s restaurants only.
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Revenues
In both 2005 and 2004, consolidated revenue grevashdriven by positive comparable sales as wedtramger foreign currencies.

Revenue
Increase/(decrease)
Amount Increase/(decrease) excluding currency translation
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2005 2004
Compan-operated sale:

.S. $ 4,09 $ 3,826 $ 3,59/ 7% 7% 7% 7%
Europe 5,46¢ 5,17¢ 4,49¢ 6 15 5 5
APMEA 2,45: 2,39( 2,15¢ 3 11 — 7
Latin America 1,237 93:< 774 33 21 23 21
Canade 76& 73C 632 5 16 2 8
Other 1,33¢ 1,16¢ 1,13¢ 14 3 14 3
Total $15,35: $14,22: $12,79¢ 8% 11% 6% 6%
Franchised and affiliated revenués:

U.S. $285 $269 $244¢ 6% 10% 6% 10%
Europe 1,607 1,56: 1,37 3 14 3 3
APMEA 362 331 28¢ 10 14 7 4
Latin America 90 75 85 20 (22 15 (20
Canade 182 16¢€ 14¢€ 9 15 1 7
Other 9 7 3 38 nm 38 nm
Total $ 510¢ $ 4,841 $ 4,34¢ 6% 11% 5% 7%
Total revenues

U.S. $ 6,95 $ 6,52 $ 6,03¢ 7% 8% 7% 8%
Europe 7,07z 6,731 5,87t 5 15 5 4
APMEA 2,81¢ 2,721 2,447 3 11 1 7
Latin America 1,327 1,00¢ 85¢ 32 17 22 18
Canade 94¢ 89¢ 77¢ 6 15 2 8
Other 1,34: 1,17¢ 1,14z 14 3 14 3
Total $20,46( $19,06F $17,14( 7% 11% 6% 7%

@ Includes the Compa’s revenues from conventional franchisees, devebmpah licensees and affiliates.

In the U.S., the increase in revenues in 2005 wigsm by multiple initiatives that are deliveringniety like our new Premium Chicken
Sandwiches, convenience such as cashless payntentoand extended hours as well as our continoeassfon value. In 2004, the increase
in revenues was due to the combined strength dttaéegic menu, marketing and service initiativ@anchised and affiliated revenues
increased at a higher rate than Company-operates isa2004 due to a higher percentage of frandhisstaurants throughout the year
compared with 2003.

Europe’s increase in revenues for 2005 was dutrdng comparable sales in Russia, which is enti@aynpany-operated, and positive
comparable sales in France and Germany, partlgtffs negative comparable sales in the U.K. In 2€@&increase in Europe’s revenues
was due to strong comparable sales in Russia asitiyeocomparable sales in France, the U.K. andynoéimer markets, partly offset by poor
performance in Germany.

In APMEA, revenues for 2005 benefited from stroognparable sales in Australia and Taiwan, and wegatively impacted by the
conversion of two markets (about 325 restaurantdevelopmental licensee structures during 200&dHition, revenues benefited from
expansion in China, partly offset by that markeggative comparable sales. In 2004, the increa8®MEA'’s revenues was due primarily to
strong performance in China and Australia as welp@sitive comparable sales in many other marketsly offset by poor performance in
South Korea.

In Latin America, revenues in 2005 and 2004 inadada constant currencies primarily due to positemparable sales in many marl
and a higher percentage of Company-operated restgurompared with prior years.
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The following tables present Systemwide sales draates and the increase or decrease in compaalele

Systemwide sales

Increase/(decrease)
excluding currency translation

Increase/(decrease)
2005 2004 2003
U.S. 5% 10% 9%
Europe 4 14 18
APMEA 6 12 6
Latin America 21 13 4)
Canade 8 15 17
Other 14 — 10
Total 6% 12% 11%

Comparable sales—McDonald’s restaurants

u.s.

Europe
APMEA

Latin America
Canade

Total

Operating margins

2005 2004 2003
5% 10% 9%
4 4 2
6 6 @
13 13 4
1 7 4
14 — 10
5% 8% 5%

Increase/(decrease)

2003
2005 2004

4.0%  9.6%  6.4%
2.6 24 (0.9
4.c 5.6 (4.2
116 13.0 2.3
0.2 54  —
3.9% 6.5% 2.4%

Operating margin information and discussions ralatelcDonald’s restaurants only and exclude non-pieéld’s brands.

» Franchised margin

Franchised margin dollars represent revenues franthised and affiliated restaurants less the Cagipaccupancy costs (rent and

depreciation) associated with those sites. Fraadhisargin dollars represented more than 65% ofehgbined operating margins in 2005,
2004 and 2003. Franchised margin dollars incre$846 million or 6% (6% in constant currencies) 002 and $427 million or 13% (8% in
constant currencies) in 2004. The U.S. and Euregeents accounted for more than 85% of the fraadhisargin dollars in all three years.

Franchised margir—McDonald’s restaurants

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003
U.S. $2,32¢ $2,177 $1,94¢
Europe 1,23¢ 1,19¢ 1,044
APMEA 314 284 24¢
Latin America 62 45 54
Canade 141 131 114
Total $4,07¢ $3,83: $3,40¢
PERCENT OF REVENUES

U.S. 81.4% 80.7% 79.5%
Europe 76.€ 76.5 75.¢
APMEA 86.7 85.7 85.€
Latin America 68.t 60.1 64.:
Canade 76.€ 78.C 78.2
Total 80.(% 79.2% 78.4%




The consolidated franchised margin percent incakas2005 and 2004. Both periods benefited fromrgjrcomparable sales but
reflected higher occupancy costs.

» Company-operated margins

Company-operated margin dollars represent sal€onypany-operated restaurants less the operating abthese restaurants. Company-
operated margin dollars increased $96 million or(8% in constant currencies) in 2005 and incre&388 million or 18% (13% in constant
currencies) in 2004. The U.S. and Europe segmestsuated for more than 75% of the company-opernat@djin dollars in both periods.

Company-operated margins—McDonald’s restaurants

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003
U.S. $ 76¢ $ 731 $ 63t
Europe 817 807 70¢
APMEA 267 264 21z
Latin America 141 89 47
Canade 10€ 112 92
Total $2,09¢ $2,00: $1,69¢

PERCENT OF SALES

U.S. 18.8% 19.1% 17.7%
Europe 14.¢ 15.€ 15.7
APMEA 10.¢ 11.C 9.9
Latin America 11.4 9.5 6.1
Canade 13.€ 15.2 14.¢
Total 15.(% 15.2% 14.5%

In the U.S., the Company-operated margin perceB00b benefited from positive comparable salesentiwain offset by higher
commodity, labor and occupancy costs. In 2004bepany-operated margin percent increased primduigyto positive comparable sales,
partly offset by higher commodity costs and higétaffing levels. Commodity cost pressures are eegeo ease in 2006.

In Europe, the Company-operated margin percend@b2lecreased due to the U.K., primarily as a tedudigher labor costs and
negative comparable sales, partly offset by stperfprmance in Russia. In addition, higher beefshad a negative impact across the
segment for the year. In 2004, Russia’s strongoperdnce also benefited the Company-operated mpegsent but was more than offset by
weak performance in Germany and the U.K. as wetligiser commodity costs across the segment. Contiesdire expected to have a
slightly negative impact in the first quarter ofd®and remain relatively flat for the year.

In APMEA, the Company-operated margin percent ith (2905 and 2004 was negatively impacted by wesllt®in South Korea,
partly offset by improvements in Hong Kong. In aai, 2004 benefited from improved performance ustkalia and China.

In Latin America, the Company-operated margin peraeboth years reflected improved performanci,edr by strong comparable
sales in Brazil, Argentina and Venezuela.
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. Supplemental information regarding Company-operateionald’s restaurants

As noted earlier, we continually review our restanirownership mix with a goal of improving localeance, profits and returns. Although
direct restaurant operation is more capital-intemselative to franchising and results in lower @pi@g margins as a percent of revenues,
Company-operated restaurants are important toumoess in both mature and developing markets. irCompany-operated restaurants, we
can develop and refine operating standards, maketncepts and product and pricing strategiethaowne introduce Systemwide only those
that we believe are most beneficial. In additior, fisemly believe that owning restaurants is paramda being a credible franchisor.

Like other restaurant companies, we report resoft€ompany-operated restaurants based on theis,daks costs directly incurred by
that business including occupancy costs, and wartréme results for franchised restaurants basefdamchised revenues, less associated
occupancy costs. For this reason and because wagaanr business based on geographic segment®tad the basis of our ownership
structure, we do not specifically allocate selliggneral & administrative expenses and other ojpgréihcome) expenses to Company-
operated or franchised restaurants. Other oper#éints that relate to the Company-operated restégigenerally include gains on sales of
restaurant businesses and, to a lesser exterg-@if# of equipment and leasehold improvements.

We believe that the following supplemental inforimatregarding our Company-operated restaurantsiinmmst mature and significant
markets will assist investors in understandingpégormance of this business as if it were operateftanchised restaurants. While this
analysis would shift certain revenues and costwédxt Company-operated and franchised margins, dated operating margins would not
change. In our Company-operated margins, our ocaypaxpense (outside rent expense and deprecfatidiuildings & leasehold
improvements) would be replaced by rents and serféies comparable to those paid by franchisees.

Since selling, general & administrative expensesnat specifically allocated to the Company-opeataéstaurant business, an estimate
of costs to support this business was made by t8e¢ QGanada and our three major markets in Eulbigebelieve, on average, a range of
$40,000 to $50,000 per restaurant is typical, hlltvary depending on local circumstances and thecture of the market. These costs reflect
the support services we believe are necessarytadar the best customer experience. Other selljageral & administrative costs to support
the brand would be covered by a service fee cham#ds business.

u.s. Europe Canada
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
Number of Compar-operated restaurants at ye
end 2,097 2,00z 2,03¢ 2,38z 2,35¢ 2,307 49¢ 474 472
Sales by Compar-operated restaurar $4,09¢  $3,82¢ $3,59¢ $546F $5,17¢ $4,49¢ $76E  $73C $63:Z
Compan-operated margi $ 766 $ 731 $ 63t $ 817 $ 807 $ 70€ $10€ $11z ¢ 92
Outside rent expense $ 79 $ 67 $ 66 $ 228 $ 207 $ 17¢€ $19 $18 $16
Depreciation—buildings & leasehold
improvement $ 68 $ 60 $ 60 $ 97 $ 93 $ 83 $ 8 $ 7 % 7
Average franchise rent & service fees as a percent
of saleg? 13% 13% 13% 17% 17% 17%  13% 14%  13%

@  Represents rent on leased sites. The percentagjiesfowned versus leased varies by cou

@  Europe has many countries with varying economidilg®and a wide range of franchise rent & senfiees as a percent of sal
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Selling, general & administrative expenses

Consolidated selling, general & administrative exges increased 12% in 2005 and 8% in 2004 (11%%nih constant currencies). The
share-based and related incremental compensatgemss due to the adoption of SFAS No.123(R) aceauior a majority of the constant
currency increase in 2005. The constant currenagase in 2004 reflected higher performance-basmshtive compensation.

Selling, general & administrative expenses as agrgrof revenues were 10.9% in 2005 compared V@ithot in 2004 and 10.7% in
2003, and selling, general & administrative expsresea percent of Systemwide sales were 4.1% i5 @d@pared with 3.9% in 2004 and
4.0% in 2003. The share-based and related incremnemnpensation expense increased these ratiggefc@ntage points and 0.3 percentage
points, respectively, in 2005. Management beliglias analyzing selling, general & administrativpenses as a percent of Systemwide sales
as well as revenues, is meaningful because theste @ incurred to support Systemwide restaurants.

Selling, general & administrative expenses

Increase/(decrease)

Amount Increase/(decrease) excluding currency translation

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2005 2004
u.s. $ 697 $ 60z $ 567 16% 6% 16% 6%
Europe 55€ 48t 424 15 14 15 4
APMEA 21¢ 18¢ 17z 15 9 13 4
Latin America 13¢ 107 10z 29 5 21 5
Canade 75 64 54 17 20 9 11
Other 11C 96 11t 15 (16) 15 (16)
Corporate? 427 437 39¢ 2 10 2 10
Total $2,221 $1,98C $1,83: 12% 8% 11% 5%

@  Corporate expenses consist of home office suppstsén areas such as facilities, finance, humaoueces, information technology,
legal, marketing, restaurant operations, supplyiotend training. Effective January 1, 2005, therasva reclassification of certain
information technology expenses totaling approxétya$22 million from the Corporate to the U.S. segtr

@  Segments reflected the following share-based alatexk incremental compensation expense (in miljiodsS.—$52; Europe—-$46;
APMEZA-$20; Latin Americ—$7; Canad—$7; Othe-$3; Corporate$47; Tota-$182.

The table below details the pro forma share-baspdrese for 2004 and 2003 for comparability purposes

Pro forma share-based Pro forma selling, general & Pro forma increase/(decrease)
expense administrative expense excluding currency translation

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 20041 20030 2004 2003 2005 2004
uU.S. $ 69 $ 10t $ 671 $ 672 4% — %
Europe 49 71 534 49t 4 D
APMEA 22 32 211 20¢ 1 2
Latin America 9 12 11€ 114 12 2
Canade 8 15 72 69 (3) (1)
Other 6 9 10z 124 8 (18)
Corporate 78 11C 51¢ 50¢ 17) 1
Total $ 241 $ 354 $ 2221 $ 2,18 ()% ()%

@  For 2004, pro forma sha-based expense as reported in the Company’s yeh2@ed4 Form 10-K was $156 million after tax, of @i
$7 million of expense related to restricted stonkau(RSUs) was included in net income. The remgifiLl49 million after tax ($241
million pretax) was disclosed in a note to the @diated financial statements, as required, for fwoma purposes. For 2003, pro
forma shar-based expense as reported in the Company’s yah2edd Form 10-K was $224 million after tax, of @h$4 million of
expense related to RSUs was included in net incdheeremaining $220 million after tax ($354 millipretax) was disclosed in a note
to the consolidated financial statements, as regpljifor pro forma purpose

@  Calculated by adding pro forma share-based expémseported selling, general & administrative expes.
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Impairment and other charges (credits), net

On a pretax basis, the Company recorded impairar@hbther charges (credits), net of ($28) millior2005, $290 million in 2004 and $408
million in 2003 associated with goodwill and assgpairment, as well as a lease accounting corne@i@004 and certain strategic actions in
2003. McDonald’s management does not include thes®s when reviewing business performance trendause we do not believe these
items are indicative of expected ongoing results.

Impairment and other charges (credits),

Per common share—

Pretax After tax @) diluted
IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
Restaurant closings/impairmeft $23 $13C $13€ $21 $11€ $14C $.01 $.0c $.11
Restructuring (51) 27z (33 18z (.02 14
Lease accounting correctis 16C 10= .0¢€
Total $(28) $29C $40¢ $(12) $221 $32% $(.01) $.17 $.2t

@  Although restaurant closings occur each year, #saurant closing charges in 2003, discussed bel®te the result of a separe
review by management in conjunction with othertsgec actions

@  Certain items were not tax effected.

» Restaurant closings/impairme

In 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded $23 milioth $130 million of pretax charges for impairmeaspectively, primarily due to South
Korea and its continued poor results.

In 2003, the Company recorded $136 million of metax charges consisting of: $148 million primarigyated to impairment in Latin
America; $30 million for about 50 restaurant clgsrassociated with strategic actions in Latin Aggerand a $42 million favorable
adjustment to the 2002 charge for restaurant assiprimarily due to about 85 fewer closings theginally anticipated.

» Restructuring

In 2005, the Company recorded $51 million of pratecome, primarily due to favorable adjustmentated to the conversion of a market to a
developmental licensee in APMEA and certain lidiiei§i established in 2001 and 2002 due to lower thiginally anticipated employee-
related and lease termination costs.

In 2003, the Company recorded $272 million of pretharges consisting of: $237 million related te khss on the sale of Donatos
Pizzeria, the closing of all Donatos and BostonRdarestaurants outside the U.S. and the exitdafraestic joint venture with Fazoli’s; and
$35 million related to revitalization plan actiossMcDonald’s Japan.

» Lease accounting correctic

During 2004, like other companies in the restausautt retail industries, the Company reviewed itoaaoting practices and policies with
respect to leasing transactions. Following thisexnand in consultation with its external auditdlee Company corrected an error in its prior
practices to conform the lease term used in cdloglatraight-line rent expense with the term usedmortize improvements on leased
property. The result of the correction primarilycalerated the recognition of rent expense undéaicdieases that include fixed-rent
escalations by revising the computation of stralgte rent expense to include these escalationsddrin option periods. As the correction
related solely to accounting treatment, it did afé¢ct McDonald’s historical or future cash flowstbe timing of payments under the related
leases. Its effect on the Company’s earning petesicash from operations and shareholders’ equaty mmaterial. These adjustments
primarily impacted the U.S., China, Boston Marked &hipotle. Other markets were less significamtipacted, as many of the leases outside
of the U.S. do not contain fixed-rent escalations.

Impairment and other charges (credits) by segr

Europe APMEA Latin America  Canada Corporate Consolidatec
IN MILLIONS u.s. Other
2005
Restaurant closings/impairme $ 4 $ 16 $ 3 $ 23
Restructuring (25) $ (26 (51)
Total $ 4 $ (9 $ 3 $ (26 $ (28)
2004
Restaurant closings/impairme $1C $ 25 $ 93 % 2 $ 13C

Lease accounting correctis 70 1 46 $ 4 $ 39 16C




Total

2003
Restaurant closings/impairme
Restructuring

Total

$80 $ 26 $ 13¢ $ 2 $ 4

$11) $ (20 $ 20 $ 106 $ (1)
35

$11) $20 $ 5 $ 10 $ (1)

$266 $ 10 $ 40¢
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Other operating expense, net
Other operating (income) expense, net

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003
Gains on sales of restaurant busine $(45) $(45 $(5H
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (53 (60) (37
Asset dispositions and other expe 20¢ 25¢€ 21t
Total $11C $151 $12¢

» Gains on sales of restaurant businesses

Gains on sales of restaurant businesses include gam sales of Company-operated restaurants thasvgains from exercises of purchase
options by franchisees with business facilitieséearrangements (arrangements where the Compags|tee businesses, including
equipment, to franchisees who have options to @mselhe businesses). The Company’s purchases lasshusinesses with its franchisees
and affiliates are aimed at achieving an optimahemship mix in each market. Resulting gains ordesare recorded in operating income
because the transactions are a recurring partrdfusiness.

e Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates—ibesses in which the Company actively participaigtsdoes not control—is reported after
interest expense and income taxes, except forrds&aurant partnerships, which are reported béhomme taxes. Results in 2005 decreased
primarily due to results at our Japanese affiliatieich included a one-time adjustment for restaueamployees’ back pay. The increase in
2004 was primarily due to stronger performancéne.S. and improved results from our Japanesikaédfi

» Asset dispositions and other expe

Asset dispositions and other expense consistsing ga losses on excess property and other asgmisiiions, provisions for contingencies
and uncollectible receivables and other miscellarexxpenses. Asset dispositions and other expen20®5 reflected lower losses on asset
dispositions and lower costs to acquire restauranted by litigating franchisees in Brazil. Assepisitions and other expense in 2004
reflected higher losses on asset dispositions coedpaith 2003, certain costs incurred to acquistagrants operated by litigating franchisees
in Brazil and provisions for certain contingencies.

Operating income

Consolidated operating income in 2005 and 2004idexd higher combined operating margin dollars parftiset by higher selling, general &
administrative expenses when compared with the pear.

Operating income

Increase/(decrease)

Amount Increase/(decrease) excluding currency translation
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2005 2004
U.S. $2,42; $2,18. $1,98: 11% 10% 11% 10%
Europe 1,44¢ 1,471  1,33¢ (1) 10 ) —
APMEA 34 20C 22€ 72 (12) 70 (20)
Latin America 30 (20 177 nm 89 nm 91
Canade 15€ 17¢ 162 (13 9 (19 2
Other 25 (16) (295) nm 94 nm 94
Corporate (40%) (459 (412) 11 (20 11 (20
Total $4,022 $3,541 $2,83: 14% 25% 13% 19%

nm Not meaningful

@  Segments reflected the following share-based aatleickincremental compensation expense (in miljiodsS.—$56; Europe —$48;
APMEA-$21; Latin America—$8; Canada—$8; Other—$3; Corgter-$47; Total-$191 ($182 million in selling, gesles: administrative
expense and $9 million in Compi-operated margins
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The table below details the pro forma share-baspdrese for 2004 and 2003 for comparability purposes

Pro forma share-based Pro forma increase/(decrease)
expense Pro forma operating income excluding currency translation

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2004 2003 2005 2004
U.S. $ 68 $ 10t $ 2,11: $ 1,871 15% 13%
Europe 49 71 1,42 1,26¢ 2 2
APMEA 22 32 17¢ 194 92 (18)
Latin America 9 12 (29 (189) nm 87
Canads 8 15 17¢ 14¢ (15 7
Other 6 9 (22) (3049 nm 93
Corporate 78 11C (539 (522) 24 2
Total $ 241 $ 354 $ 3,30( $ 2,47¢ 22% 27%

@  For 2004, pro forma sha-based expense as reported in the Company’s yeh2@ed4 Form 10-K was $156 million after tax, of @i
$7 million of expense related to RSUs was includetkt income. The remaining $149 million after (8241 million pretax) was
disclosed in a note to the consolidated financiatements, as required, for pro forma purposes. F03, pro forma share-based
expense as reported in the Company’s year-end Bo8# 10-K was $224 million after tax, of which $#lion of expense related to
RSUs was included in net income. The remaining $2iflidn after tax ($354 million pretax) was disskxd in a note to the consolidat
financial statements, as required, for pro formagmses

@  Calculated by subtracting pro forma share-basede@sg from reported operating income.

The following discussion on Operating income redatepro forma increase/(decrease) excluding cayréianslation in the table above.

In 2005 and 2004, U.S. operating income includgthdéi combined operating margin dollars compare2D®4 and 2003, respectively.
Selling, general & administrative expense in 20@6 \Wigher partly due to certain information tecbgglexpenses previously recorded in the
Corporate segment. Other operating expense dedr&a2805 compared to 2004 and increased in 206¥aced to 2003 due to higher asset
dispositions in 2004. In 2004, operating incoméuded charges related to the lease accountingat@meof $70 million as well as
impairment charges of $10 million.

In Europe, results for 2005 reflected strong pentomce in France and Russia, improved performanGeimany and weak results in
U.K. In addition, results included a supply chaage of $24 million, which negatively impacted tperating income growth rate by
approximately 2 percentage points. In 2004, reqdteefited from strong performances in France amebRR as well as improved performance
in Italy, offset by weak results in the U.K. andr@any. In addition, 2004 results included impairtngrarges of $25 million.

In APMEA, results for 2005 were positively impactegstrong performance in Australia partly offsgtviieak results in Japan, China
and South Korea. In 2004, operating income alsefited from Australia’s performance as well as imprd performance in Hong Kong and
China, partly offset by poor results in South Korgasults for 2004 also included charges relatédedease accounting correction of $46
million as well as impairment charges of $93 miilio

In Latin America, results for 2005 improved duetmtinued strong sales performance in most madeetsell as lower costs to acquire
restaurants owned by litigating franchisees in Bralazen compared to 2004. In 2004, Latin Americaerating loss decreased as compared
with 2003, due to impairment charges in 2003 a$ agsignificantly lower provisions for uncolledgtreceivables and improved performa
in Venezuela and Argentina. In addition, operatimgpme in 2004 included certain costs incurreddguare restaurants owned by litigating
franchisees in Brazil.

In the Corporate segment, results for 2005 bernkfitam lower share-based compensation, certainmmdtion technology expenses that
are now reflected in the U.S. segment, lower ingerbased compensation and a favorable adjustroadrtain liabilities established in 2001
and 2002 due to lower than originally anticipatethéoyee-related and lease termination costs.

Interest expense

Interest expense for 2005 reflected higher aveirsigeest rates and lower average debt levels. HilBt Borrowed late in the fourth quarter
a minimal impact on the average debt levels fors20fterest expense decreased in 2004 due to lavezage debt levels and interest rates,
partly offset by stronger foreign currencies.

Nonoperating (income) expense, net

Nonoperating (income) expense,

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003
Interest incom: $(73) $(28) $(13)
Translation los: 7 28 23
Gain on sale of U.S. real estate partner (49

Other expens 30 28 88




Total $(36) $(20) $98

Interest income consists primarily of interest earon short-term cash investments. Translatiorefopsimarily relate to gains or losses
on certain hedges that reduce the exposure tobifitsiaon certain intercompany foreign cash flowestms. Other expense primarily consists
of gains or losses on early extinguishment of dafoiprtization of deferred debt issuance costs andnity interest expense.
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Provision for income taxes

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, the reported effectivermedax rates were 29.7%, 28.9% and 35.7%, respdetivn 2005, the effective tax rate
included a benefit of $179 million due to a favdeabudit settlement of the Company’s 2000-2002 th$returns, partly offset by additional
expense of approximately $106 million related ® @ompany’s decision to take advantage of thetione-opportunity provided under HIA
repatriate certain foreign earnings. The net ohlietms benefited the 2005 effective tax rate byual2 percentage points. The effective
income tax rate for the full year 2004 benefiteatriran international transaction and the utilizatibrertain previously unrealized capital loss
carryforwards. In 2003, the effective income tateiacluded a benefit of $102 million due to a fealde audit settlement of the Company’s
1997-1999 U.S. tax returns, as well as certaint asgairment and other charges that were not tectdd.

Consolidated net deferred tax liabilities includaxl assets, net of valuation allowance, of $1,11llomin 2005 and $1,319 million in
2004. Substantially all of the net tax assets airogiee U.S. and other profitable markets.

Accounting changes
e SFAS Statement N0.123(R)

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company adoptedatin@alue recognition provisions of SFAS No0.123(R)ng the modified-prospective
transition method. Under this transition methodnpensation cost in 2005 includes the portion vgstirthe period for (1) all share-based
payments granted prior to, but not vested as afagnl, 2005, based on the grant date fair valtimated in accordance with the original
provisions of the Statement of Financial Account8tgndards No.123\ccounting for Stock-Based Compensatand (2) all share-based
payments granted subsequent to January 1, 200&] basthe grant date fair value estimated in acoare with the provisions of SFAS
No0.123(R). Results for prior periods have not besstated. Refer to the Summary of significant antiog policies note to the consolidal
financial statements for further discussion of ttém.

In 2005, in connection with its adoption of SFAS.N28(R), the Company adjusted the mix of emplogpegiterm incentive
compensation by reducing stock options awardedramdasing cashased incentives and other equity based awardghEgrear ended 20(
results included pretax expense of $191 million®@r10 per share after tax) of which $154 milliefated to share-based compensation and
$37 million related to the compensation shift.

e Cumulative effect of accounting change

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adoptedtaeement of Financial Accounting Standards No.2A8punting for Asset Retirement
Obligations,which requires legal obligations associated withrigtirement of long-lived assets to be recognidtieir fair value at the time
the obligations are incurred. The ongoing annualiah of this statement is not material to the Camgpa

CASH FLOWS

The Company generates significant cash from omeratind has substantial credit capacity to fundadimg and discretionary spending such
as capital expenditures, debt repayments, dividandsshare repurchase.

Cash from operations totaled $4.3 billion and ereeecapital expenditures by $2.7 billion in 200%5jlescash from operations totaled
$3.9 billion and exceeded capital expendituresh$ ®illion in 2004. Cash provided by operations@ased $433 million in 2005 and $635
million in 2004 due to strong operating resultsmarily in the U.S., and changes in working capifdle changes in working capital in 2005
benefited from lower income tax payments comparih thie prior year. The Company expects to havaérigncome tax payments in 2006.

Cash used for investing activities totaled $1.8dilin 2005, an increase of $435 million primariye to higher capital expenditures
increased purchases of restaurant businessesu€edtior investing activities totaled $1.4 billion2004, flat compared with 2003, due to
higher capital expenditures and lower sales of gmtyp offset by lower purchases of restaurant ssias.

Cash from financing activities totaled $362 million2005, an increase of $2.0 billion primarily doe52.9 billion of local borrowings
related to HIA and higher proceeds from employeeksbption exercises. The increase was partly bffgéiigher share repurchases, higher
debt repayments and an increase in the common diaiclkend. In 2004, cash used for financing aadtgittotaled $1.6 billion, a decrease of
$103 million primarily due to higher proceeds fremployee stock option exercises and lower debtyrapats, partly offset by higher share
repurchases and an increase in the common stoicledi.

As a result of the above activity, the Company’shcand equivalents balance increased $2.9 billid0D5 to $4.3 billion, compared to
an increase of $887 million in 2004. The Comparmanplto return to pre-HIA cash levels over the mexiple of years as we use this cash to
fund capital expenditures under our remodelingdtiites, new restaurants openings and salarideilJtS.

In addition to cash and equivalents and cash peavity operations, the Company can meet short-tenaifig needs through
commercial paper borrowings and line of credit agrents.

Restaurant development and capital expenditures

In 2005, the Company opened 558 traditional McDd'salestaurants and 120 satellite restaurants (stngited-menu restaurants for which
the land and building are generally leased), anged 145 traditional restaurants and 263 satedlgg@urants. In 2004, the Company opened
430 traditional McDonald’s restaurants and 198Is@teestaurants, and closed 185 traditional nastats and 134 satellite restaurants. About
85% and 70% of McDonald’s net restaurant additmeturred in the major markets in 2005 and 200 aetsvely.
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Systemwide restaurants at year éhd

2005 2004 2003

U.S. 13,727 13,67: 13,60¢
Europe 6,352 6,287 6,18¢
APMEA 7,69z 7,561 7,47¢
Latin America 1,617 1,607 1,57¢
Canade 1,37¢ 1,362z 1,33¢
Other 1,12C 1,06¢ 942
Total 31,88¢ 31,56 31,12¢

@  Includes satellite units at December 31, 2005, 280d 2003 as follows: U-1,268, 1,341, 1,307; Europe-190, 181, 150; APMEA
(primarily Japan-1,730, 1,819, 1,841; Latin Amer+8,13, 20; and Cana395, 378, 350

In 2006, the Company expects to open about 70&itradl McDonald’s restaurants and 100 satelligtaarants and close about 225
traditional restaurants and 125 satellite restaaran

Approximately 65% of Company-operated restaurantsraore than 85% of franchised and affiliated nestats were located in the
major markets at the end of 2005. Franchisees flitidtas operated 73% of McDonald’s restaurantgestr-end 2005. Non-McDonald’s
brand restaurants are primarily Company-operated.

Capital expenditures increased $188 million or I8%005 and $112 million or 9% in 2004. The inceeascapital expenditures in 2(
was primarily due to increased investment in exgstiestaurants, primarily in the U.S. The incrdaseapital expenditures in 2004 was also
due to increased investment in existing restaurgnitmarily in the U.S. and Europe, partly offsgtlbwer expenditures on restaurant
openings. Capital expenditures in both years rfldfee Company’s focus on growing sales at exig@stpurants, including reinvestment
initiatives such as reimaging in several marketsiad the world.

Capital expenditures invested in major marketslughiag Japan, represented about 70% of the tot2D@b, 2004 and 2003. Japan is
accounted for under the equity method, and accglglits capital expenditures are not included insmlidated amounts.

Capital expenditures

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003

New restaurant $ 511 $ 50C $ 617
Existing restaurani 95( 774 564
Other propertie$’ 14¢€ 14k 12¢
Total $ 1607 $1,41¢ $ 1,307
Total asset $29,98¢ $27,83¢ $25,83¢

@  Primarily corporate-related equipment and furnishings for office bimitgs.

New restaurant investments in both 2005 and 2004 w@ncentrated in markets with acceptable retanagor opportunities for long-
term growth. Average development costs vary witglynarket depending on the types of restaurantsdnd the real estate and construction
costs within each market. These costs, which irecladd, buildings and equipment, are managed thrthe use of optimally sized
restaurants, construction and design efficienaieslaveraging best practices. In addition, foreggrrency fluctuations affect average
development costs. Although the Company is notaesible for all costs on every restaurant opermre@0D5 total development costs
(consisting of land, buildings and equipment) fewrtraditional McDonald’s restaurants averaged adprately $1.9 million in the U.S. and
approximately $1.7 million in the 9 markets wheexelopment was concentrated outside the U.S. Fa8,2fe U.S., China and eight other
consolidated markets are expected to account fautakb% of restaurant openings.

The Company and its affiliates owned 37% of thelland 59% of the buildings for its restaurantsestryend 2005 and 2004.

Share repurchases and dividends

For the past three years, the Company has retarsaghificant amount of cash to shareholders tHi@lgres repurchased and dividends. In
2006 and 2007 combined, the Company expects tanrbetween $5 billion and $6 billion to sharehofdrough a combination of shares
repurchased and dividends. The Company expectatplete share repurchases of about $1 billionérfitist quarter of 2006.

Shares repurchased and dividends

IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA 2005 2004 2003

Number of shares repurchas 39.t 22.z 18.¢
Dividends declared per she $ 67 $ 58 $ .4C



Dollar amount of shares repurcha: $1,22¢ $ 605 $43¢
Dividends $ 84z $ 69t $504

Total cash returned to sharehold $2,07C $1,30C $945

The Company repurchases shares of its common statge a $5.0 billion share repurchase program aattehin 2001. Through 2005,
100.7 million shares have been repurchased forl$ifi@ under this program.

The Company has paid dividends on its common imrc80 consecutive years and has increased thdetidiamount every year. In
2005, the Company declared a 22% per share inciedise annual dividend to $0.67 per share or $&#lon, reflecting the Company’s
confidence in the ongoing strength and reliabibityts cash flow. This represents a 185% increes®m the 2002 dividend. As in the past,
future dividends will be considered after reviewttigidend yields, profitability expectations anddncing needs and will be declared at the
discretion of the Board of Directors. Cash divideade declared and paid on an annual basis.
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FINANCIAL POSITION AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Total assets and returns

Total assets grew by $2.2 billion or 8% in 2005 &&d billion or 8% in 2004. Total assets in 2008uded $2.9 billion of cash borrowed
under HIA, partly offset by changes in foreign emty exchange rates, which decreased total assefgplboximately $1.3 billion in 2005.
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates incdetasal assets by $1.0 billion in 2004. Nearly 668gonsolidated assets were located in
the major markets at year-end 2005. Net propertyemuipment decreased $795 million in 2005 andesspited 66% of total assets at year
end.

Operating income, which excludes interest incomesed to compute return on average assets, whidenie before the cumulative
effect of accounting changes is used to calcukgttem on average common equity. Month-end balaamesised to compute both average
assets and average common equity.

Returns on assets and eqt

2005 2004 2003
Return on average asséts 14.4% 13.4% 11.£%
Return on average common eqt 17.¢ 17.¢ 13.5

@  Return on average assets was negatively impactsghificantly higher cash and equivalents balandas in part to the Compa'’s
planning related to HIA and subsequent repatriatdfrearnings in 2005. Cash and equivalents reduegn on average assets by :
percentage points, 0.6 percentage points and Ordepgage points in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respegti

Impairment and other charges reduced return orageessets by 0.9 percentage points in 2004 argkicéntage points in 2003. In
addition, these charges reduced return on ave@geon equity by 1.3 percentage points in 2004 a@gercentage points in 2003. In 2005
and 2004, return on average assets and returnesage/common equity both benefited from strong atpeg results in the U.S. In addition,
returns in 2004 benefited from improved resultEimope. In 2005, return on average common equityated the same percentage increa
both net income and average shareholders’ equityefd by the significant increase in shareholdetgiity at the end of 2004 compared with
2003). During 2006, the Company will continue tmcentrate McDonald’s restaurant openings and n@itatanvested in markets with
acceptable returns or opportunities for long-terowgh, such as China. In addition, the Company etgo® return between $5 billion and $6
billion to shareholders through a combination airels repurchased and dividends in 2006 and 200Binerh

Financing and market risk

The Company generally borrows on a long-term basibis exposed to the impact of interest rate obmagd foreign currency fluctuations.
Debt obligations at December 31, 2005 totaled $hdlibn, compared with $9.2 billion at December, 2004. The net increase in 2005 was
due to net issuances related to HIA ($2.9 billigraxtly offset by net payments ($1.2 billion), thgpact of changes in exchange rates on
foreign currency denominated debt ($580 milliondl #me Statement of Financial Accounting Standards183,Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activiti(SFAS No. 133) noncash fair value adjustments ($tillion).

Debt highlights®

2005 200¢ 200:
Fixed-rate debt as a percent of total debt) 46% 59% 62%
Weightec-average annual interest rate of total ¢ 41 3.¢ 4.1
Foreign currency-denominated debt as a percentaifdebt? 35 80 72 71
Total debt as a percent of total capitalizatioaltdebt and total shareholders’ equi)) 40 39 44
Cash provided by operations as a percent of tetai® 44 44 35

@  All percentages are as of December 31, excephmieighte-average annual interest rate, which is for theryea

@  Based on debt obligations before the effect of SRASL33 fair value adjustments. This effect iduslad, as these adjustme
ultimately have no impact on the obligation at migu See Debt financing note to the consolidatedrfcial statement:

@ Includes the effect of interest rate and foreigrr&ncy exchange agreemer
@  HIA-related borrowings caused an 18 percentage pagctehse in fixed-rate debt in 2005.

®  HIA-related borrowings caused an 8 percentage poictsgase in foreign currency-denominated debt in 2005

Moody'’s, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch cuthgnate the Company’s commercial paper P-1, A-d Bh, respectively; and its long-term
debt A2, A and A, respectively. Historically, them@pany has not experienced difficulty in obtainfimgncing or refinancing existing debt.
The Company’s key metrics for monitoring its cresfiucture are shown in the preceding table. WthieCompany targets these metrics for
ease of focus, it also looks at similar creditasthat incorporate capitalized operating leasestimate total adjusted debt. Total adjusted
debt is a term that is commonly used by the ratiggncies referred to above, which includes delstantling on the Comparsybalance she
plus an adjustment to capitalize operating lesBased on their most recent calculations, thesecageadd between $7 billion and $10 bill
of debt for lease capitalization purposes. The Comgbelieves the rating agency methodology fortediping leases requires certain
adjustments. These adjustments include: excludéngemt rents in excess of minimum rents; excludergain Company-operated restaurant
lease agreements outside the U.S. that are cafegldb minimal penalties (representing approxinhagb% of Compan-operated restaura



leases outside the U.S., based on the Companyisags}; capitalizing non-restaurant leases usingtiple of three times rent expense; and
reducing total rent expense by a percentage aditheal minimum rent payments due to the Company franchisees operating
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on leased sites. Based on this calculation, faticemalysis purposes approximately $4 billion fotffilion of future operating lease payments
would be capitalized.

Certain of the Company’s debt obligations contagss-acceleration provisions and restrictions omg@any and subsidiary mortgages
and the long-term debt of certain subsidiariesr@aee no provisions in the Company’s debt oblaratithat would accelerate repayment of
debt as a result of a change in credit ratingsroaterial adverse change in the Company’s busifiéesCompany has $1.3 billion available
under a committed line of credit agreement (seet Biedincing note to the consolidated financial esta¢nts) as well as approximately $1.4
billion under a U.S. shelf registration and $41@ion under a Euro Medium-Term Notes program fdufe debt issuance.

The Company uses major capital markets, bank fings@and derivatives to meet its financing requigata and reduce interest expe
The Company manages its debt portfolio in resptmshanges in interest rates and foreign curreamsrby periodically retiring, redeeming
and repurchasing debt, terminating exchange agmsraed using derivatives. The Company does notleseatives with a level of
complexity or with a risk higher than the exposuebe hedged and does not hold or issue derivaforetrading purposes. All exchange
agreements are over-the-counter instruments.

In managing the impact of interest rate changed@meign currency fluctuations, the Company usésrést rate exchange agreements
and finances in the currencies in which assetsl@ememinated. All derivatives were recorded at¥aiue in the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet at December 31, 2005 and 2004 piyrrarniscellaneous other assets ($83 million abh@2million, respectively) and other
long-term liabilities ($103 million and $218 milliprespectively). See Summary of significant actiogrpolicies note to the consolidated
financial statements related to financial instrutadar additional information regarding their uselahe impact of SFAS No.133 regarding
derivatives.

The Company uses foreign currency debt and deviemtio hedge the foreign currency risk associaifdaertain royalties,
intercompany financings and long-term investmemt®ieign subsidiaries and affiliates. In 2005, @@mpany used foreign currency debt to
hedge the foreign currency risk associated withipr currency denominated cash and equivalentsedeta HIA. This reduces the impact of
fluctuating foreign currencies on cash flows andrsholders’ equity. Total foreign currendgnominated debt, including the effects of fort
currency exchange agreements, was $8.1 billiortérfél billion for the years ended 2005 and 2004 eesvely. In addition, where practical,
the Company’s restaurants purchase goods and seiividocal currencies resulting in natural hedges.

The Company does not have significant exposuraydralividual counterparty and has master agreesnat contain netting
arrangements. Certain of these agreements alsoeegpch party to post collateral if credit ratifigh below, or aggregate exposures exceed,
certain contractual limits. At December 31, 2008 2004, the Company was required to post collatefr&P4 million and $46 million,
respectively.

The Company’s net asset exposure is diversifiedngnacbroad basket of currencies. The Compalargest net asset exposures (def
as foreign currency assets less foreign curremdylilies) at year end were as follows:

Foreign currency net asset exposu

IN MILLIONS OF U.S. DOLLARS 2005 2004
Euro $2,07:  $2,45¢
Canadian Dollar 1,07C 964
British Pounds Sterlin 822 1,08¢
Australian Dollars 682 88C
Brazilian Reais 39E 372

The Company prepared sensitivity analyses ofii@ricial instruments to determine the impact of tiyptical changes in interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates on the Compaagults of operations, cash flows and the fdirevaf its financial instruments. The
interest rate analysis assumed a one percentageguvierse change in interest rates on all finhnms&ruments but did not consider the
effects of the reduced level of economic activiitgttcould exist in such an environment. The foreigmency rate analysis assumed that each
foreign currency rate would change by 10% in thaesdirection relative to the U.S. Dollar on alldircial instruments; however, the analysis
did not include the potential impact on sales Igyvklcal currency prices or the effect of fluctngtcurrencies on the Company’s anticipated
foreign currency royalties and other payments kexgkin the U.S. Based on the results of these aeslgf the Company’s financial
instruments, neither a one percentage point adwdiaege in interest rates from 2005 levels nor% a@verse change in foreign currency
rates from 2005 levels would materially affect @@mpany’s results of operations, cash flows offélirevalue of its financial instruments.

Contractual obligations and commitments

The Company has long-term contractual obligatiomsarily in the form of lease obligations (relateedboth Company-operated and
franchised restaurants) and debt obligations. titiad, the Company has long-term revenue and fiashstreams that relate to its franchise
arrangements. Cash provided by operations (inctudash provided by these franchise arrangemertsy avith the Company’s borrowing
capacity and other sources of cash will be usestisfy the obligations. The following table sumimas the Company’s contractual
obligations and their aggregate maturities as agfuture minimum rent payments due to the Compaugler existing franchise arrangements
as of December 31, 2005. (See discussions of dash &nd Financial position and capital resourcewell as the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements for further details.)
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Contractual cash Contractual

outflows cash inflows

Minimum

t und

Operating Debt rf?gngr?iszr
IN MILLIONS leases obligations® arrangements
2006 $ 1,072 $ 1,20 $ 1,80¢
2007 1,01( 887 1,752
2008 93¢ 3,08¢ 1,69¢
2009 86¢ 35¢ 1,63
2010 79t 1,571 1,562
Thereatftel 6,65: 2,84( 11,73¢
Total $11,33¢ $ 9,94¢ $ 20,187

@  The maturities reflect reclassifications of shatrh obligations to long-term obligations of $1.1ibn, as they are supported by a long-
term line of credit agreement expiring in 2010. Debligations do not include $191 million of SFA8 M83 noncash fair value
adjustments. This effect is excluded as these tatunds ultimately have no impact on the obligatibmaturity.

The Company maintains certain supplemental beplgfits that allow participants to (i) make tax-deddrcontributions and (ii) receive
Company-provided allocations that cannot be madieuthe qualified benefit plans because of InteR&lenue Service limitations. The
investment alternatives and returns are based rbaircenarket-rate investment alternatives undeiGbompany’s qualified Profit Sharing and
Savings Plan. Total liabilities for the suppleméptans were $366 million at December 31, 2005 $Bs0 million at December 31, 2004 and
were included in other long-term liabilities in tbensolidated balance sheet.

In addition to long-term obligations, the Compamyllguaranteed certain affiliate and other loaraita $46 million at December 31,
2005.

OTHER MATTERS
Critical accounting policies and estimates

Management’s discussion and analysis of finan@ab@ion and results of operations is based uperChmpany’s consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordgititeccounting principles generally accepted m thS. The preparation of these
financial statements requires the Company to makimates and judgements that affect the reportezliata of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses as well as related disclosures. ©ngwoing basis, the Company evaluates its estinzatg$gudgements based on historical
experience and various other factors that are\mi¢o be reasonable under the circumstances. Wetsidts may differ from these estimates
under various assumptions or conditions.

The Company reviews its financial reporting andlisure practices and accounting policies quarterBnsure that they provide
accurate and transparent information relative ¢octirrent economic and business environment. Timep@ay believes that of its significant
accounting policies, the following involve a higliegree of judgement and/or complexity.

. Property and equipmel

Property and equipment are depreciated or amortineal straight-line basis over their useful livasdd on management'’s estimates of the
period over which the assets will generate revénatto exceed lease term plus options for leasepauty). The useful lives are estimated
based on historical experience with similar assaksng into account anticipated technological tireo changes. The Company periodically
reviews these lives relative to physical factocar@mic factors and industry trends. If there dx@nges in the planned use of property and
equipment or if technological changes occur mopédig than anticipated, the useful lives assigreethese assets may need to be shortened,
resulting in the recognition of increased deprémimand amortization expense or write-offs in fetperiods.

. Share-based compensation

The Company has share-based compensation plank atnicorize the granting of various equity-basegimives including stock options,
restricted stock and RSUs to employees and nongegldirectors. The expense for these equity-basmhtives is based on their fair value
at date of grant and amortized over their vestiagogl.

The fair value of each stock option granted isnested on the date of grant using a closed-formmgimodel. The pricing model
requires assumptions such as the expected lifeecdtbck option and expected volatility of the Camygs stock over the expected life, which
significantly impact the assumed fair value. Therpany uses historical data to determine these gam and if these assumptions change
significantly for future grants, share-based conspéion expense will fluctuate in future years. Tdievalue of each RSU granted is equal to
the market price of the Company’s stock at datgraht less the present value of expected dividemdsthe vesting period.

. Long-lived assets impairment review

Long-lived assets (including goodwill) are reviewfedimpairment annually in the fourth quarter amdenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouinoiisset may not be recoverable. In assessingthearability of the Company’s loriyed
assets, the Company considers changes in economidions and makes assumptions regarding estinfiatece cash flows and other factc
The biggest assumption impacting estimated futash ¢lows is the estimated change in comparabés sBktimates of future cash flows



highly subjective judgements based on the Compawperience and knowledge of its operations. Tleeimates can be significantly
impacted by many factors including changes in dlabd local business and economic conditions, dipgraosts, inflation, competition, and
consumer and demographic trends. If the Comparsgimates or underlying assumptions change in theduthe Company may be required

to record impairment charges.
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Losses on assets held for sale are recognized mhaagement has approved and committed to a plsailtthe assets, the assets are
available for sale and probable of occurring withthhmonths and the net sales proceeds from thésamseexpected to be less than its net
book value.

. Litigation accruals

From time to time, the Company is subject to prdoggs, lawsuits and other claims related to conrsti customers, employees, franchis
government agencies, intellectual property, shddehns and suppliers. The Company is required tesssthe likelihood of any adverse
judgements or outcomes to these matters as wpbtastial ranges of probable losses. A determinatiche amount of accrual required
any, for these contingencies is made after caeafalysis of each matter. The required accrual rhapge in the future due to new
developments in each matter or changes in appmaahas a change in settlement strategy in deafithgthese matters. The Company does
not believe that any such matter will have a matexilverse effect on its financial condition orulesof operations.

. Income taxe:

The Company records a valuation allowance to redaaeferred tax assets if it is more likely thmot that some portion or all of the deferred
assets will not be realized. While the Companyduassidered future taxable income and ongoing pruged feasible tax strategies in
assessing the need for the valuation allowantkege estimates and assumptions change in the fiier Company may be required to adjust
its valuation allowance. This could result in argjgato, or an increase in, income in the periodhgletermination is made.

In addition, the Company operates within multigibg jurisdictions and is subject to audit in ta@srisdictions. The Company records
accruals for the estimated outcomes of these awaditsthe accruals may change in the future dnewodevelopments in each matter. During
2005, the Company recorded a $179 million benefi © favorable audit settlement of the Compan@®2-2002 U.S. tax returns. During
2003, the Company recorded a $102 million beneiit t favorable audit settlement of the Compan9%711999 tax returns. The Compasy’
2003-2004 U.S. tax returns are under audit. Thé &udxpected to be completed in late 2006 orye2007 and no estimate can be made of
the benefit or charge, if any, resulting from tleenpletion of the audit.

Deferred U.S. income taxes have not been recowfebfis differences totaling $3.9 billion relatednvestments in certain foreign
subsidiaries and corporate joint ventures. Thestdiffierences consist primarily of undistributedreags that are considered permanently
invested in the businesses. If management’s imesithange in the future, deferred taxes may reebd provided.

Effects of changing prices—inflation

The Company has demonstrated an ability to mandtgionary cost increases effectively. This isdugse of rapid inventory turnover, the
ability to adjust menu prices, cost controls anolssantial property holdings, many of which areixd costs and partly financed by debt nr
less expensive by inflation.

Reconciliation of returns on incremental invested apital

Return on incremental invested capital (ROIIC) measure reviewed by management to determine fibetigEness of capital deployed.
ROIIC is calculated as a percentage and is cakxilah a one-year basis and a three-year basisidrherator is the Company’s constant
foreign exchange rate (excludes the impact of freurrency translation) incremental operating meglus depreciation and amortization,
based on a comparison of the current and basedgefitie denominator is the constant foreign exchaate weighted average adjusted cash
used for investing activities during the applicabe- or three-year period. Adjusted cash usethf@sting activities is defined as cash used
for investing activities less net cash (collectjomsd issuances of notes receivable, which do eotgte operating income. Constant foreign
exchange rate weighted average adjusted cash aised/ésting activities is based on a weightingliggpon a quarterly basis detailed in the
tables below. These weightings reflect the relatimetribution of each quarter’s investing actistte constant foreign exchange rate
incremental operating income. Once the weightingsagplied to the adjusted cash used for investatiyities in each quarter, the results are
aggregated to arrive at the weighted average adjustsh used for investing activities. Managemeli¢ves that weighting cash used for
investing activities provides a more accurate otite of the relationship between its investmemid geturns than a simple average.
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The reconciliations to the most comparable measenésnin accordance with accounting principles gaheaccepted in the U.S., for
the numerator and denominator of the one-year laneg tyear ROIIC are as follows:

One-year ROIIC calculation

Years ended December 31,

Incremental

2005 2004 change

NUMERATOR:
Pro forma operating incontg $ 4,021.¢ $ 3,299.0 $ 722:
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,249.* 1,201.( 48.F
Currency translatiof® (26.€)
Constant foreign exchange rate incremental operatimincome plus depreciation and

amortization $ 744.:
DENOMINATOR:
Weighted average adjusted cash used for investitigjtaes ©) $ 1,625.
Currency translatiof? (6.0
Constant foreign exchange rate weighted average adjted cash used for investing activities $ 1,619.
One-year ROIIC ¥ 46.(%

@  Reflects adjustments for comparability purposeh waspect to sha-based expense as described in discussion of Opgriacome.
@  Represents the effect of foreign currency transteliy translating results at an average exchande far the periods measure

@  Represents oryear weighted average adjusted cash used for fimgeactivities, determined by applying the weigbs below to the
adjusted cash used for investing activities forteqoarter in the tw-year period ended December 31, 2C

Years ended December 31,

2004 2005
Cash used for investing activiti $1,383.1 $1,817.8
Less: Net cash (collection)/issuances of notesivabées (11.2) (0.1)
Adjusted cash used for investing activit $1,394.3 $1,817.9
AS A PERCEN
Quarters ended
March 31 12.5% 87.5%
June 3C 37.5 62.5
September 3 62.5 37.5
December 3: 87.5 12.5

@  The decrease in Impairment and other charges (tspbetween 2005 and 2004 benefited the one-yedCRIy 20 percentage points.

Three-year ROIIC calculation

Years ended December 31,

Incremental
2005 2002 change

NUMERATOR:

Pro forma operating incont@ $ 4,021.¢ $ 1,706.¢ $ 2,314,
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,249t 1,050.¢ 198.%
Currency translatiof®) (700.6)
Constant foreign exchange rate incremental operatigpincome plus depreciation and

amortization $ 1,812.¢

DENOMINATOR:



Weighted average adjusted cash used for investitigjtaes (") $ 4,918.:

Currency translatiof®) 32.t
Constant foreign exchange rate weighted average adjted cash used for investing activities $ 4,950."
Three-year ROIIC ® 36.6%

®  Share-based expense as reported in the Compargrseyel 2002 Form 10-K was $251.7 million after (8406.0 million pretax). For
comparability purposes to 2005 results subsequeatibpting SFAS No.123(R), the 2002 reported operabcome of $2,112.9 was
adjusted for this pro forma expen:

©®  Represents the effect of foreign currency transteliy translating results at an average exchande far the periods measure

(m  Represents thri-year weighted average adjusted cash used for iimgeactivities, determined by applying the weigbs below to the
adjusted cash used for investing activities forreaqoarter in the fol-year period ended December 31, 2C

Years ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004 2005
Cash used for investing activiti $2,466.6 $1,369.6 $1,383.1 $1,817.¢
Less: Net cash (collection)/issuances of notesivabées 1.4) (2.1) (11.2) (0.2
Adjusted cash used for investing activit $2,468.0 $1,371.7 $1,394.3 $1,817.¢
AS A PERCEN

Quarters ended

March 31 12.5% 100.0% 100.0% 87.5%
June 3C 37.5 100.0 100.0 62.5
September 3 62.5 100.0 100.0 37.5
December 3: 87.5 100.0 100.0 12.F

®  The decrease in Impairment and other charges (tspbetween 2005 and 2002 benefited the three REHIC by 18 percentage points.

Risk factors and cautionary statement about forwardlooking information

This report includes forward-looking statementsuttmur plans and future performance, including ¢hasder Outlook for 2006. These
statements use such words as “may,” “will,” “expetielieve” and “plan."They reflect our expectations about the future spehk only as «
the date of this report. We do not undertake taatpdr revise them. Our expectations (or the ugihgylassumptions) may change or not be
realized, and you should not place undue reliamc®avard-looking statements. We have identifieg phincipal risks and uncertainties that
affect our performance elsewhere in this repo, iamestors are urged to consider these risks andrtainties when evaluating our historical
and expected performance.
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ltem 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about rearisk are included in Part 11, Iltem 7, page 28hi$ Form 10-K.
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Consolidated statement of income

IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA

REVENUES
Sales by Compal-operated restaurar
Revenues from franchised and affiliated restaur

Total revenues

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSE
Compan-operated restaurant expen

Food & pape

Payroll & employee benefi

Occupancy & other operating expen
Franchised restaura—occupancy expens:
Selling, general & administrative expen:
Impairment and other charges (credits),
Other operating expense, 1

Total operating costs and expense

Operating income

Interest expen«-net of capitalized interest of $4.9, $4.1 and ¢

Nonoperating (income) expense,

Income before provision for income taxes and cumuteve effect of accounting chang

Provision for income taxe

Income before cumulative effect of accounting chare

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net ofttarefit of $9.4

Net income

Per common share—basic:

Income before cumulative effect of accounting clee
Cumulative effect of accounting char

Net income

Per common share—diluted:

Income before cumulative effect of accounting chee
Cumulative effect of accounting char

Net income

Dividends per common share

Weighted-average shares outstanding—basic
Weighted-average shares outstandir—diluted

See Notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
$15,351.° $14,223. $12,795.
5,108  4,840.¢ 4,345
20,460.. 19,064,  17,140.
5207.. 4,852  4,314.
4,039. 3,726. 3,411.c
3,867.] 3,520.¢ 3,279.¢
1,021.¢ 1,003.: 937.7
2,220.¢ 1,980.( 1,833.(
(28.4) 290.£ 407.¢

110.4 150.¢ 124.(

16,438.(  15524..  14,308.
4,021.¢ 3,540.¢ 2,832.
356.1 358.4 388.(

(36.1) (20.9) 97.

3,701.¢ 3,202.¢ 2,346.¢
1,099.4 923.¢ 838.:
2,602. 2,278 1,508.:
(36.6)

$ 2,602.. $2,278% $ 1,471
$ 206 $ 181 $ 1.1¢
(.03)

$ 206 $ 181 $ 1.1¢€
$ 204 $ 17¢ $ 1.1
(.03

$ 204 $ 17¢ $ 1.1F
$ 67 $ 55 $  .AC
1,260.4 1,259. 1,269.¢
1,274.: 1,273. 1,276.1




Consolidated balance sheet

IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and equivalen

Accounts and notes receival
Inventories, at cost, not in excess of ma
Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current assets

Other assets

Investments in and advances to affili
Goodwill, net

Miscellaneous

Total other assets

Property and equipment
Property and equipment, at c
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat

Net property and equipment
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Notes payabli

Accounts payabl

Income taxe:

Other taxe:

Accrued interes

Accrued payroll and other liabilitie

Current maturities of lor-term deb

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Other long-term liabilities

Deferred income taxes

Shareholder¢ equity

Preferred stock, no par value; author-165.0 million shares; issu—none
Common stock, $.01 par value; author-3.5 billion shares; issu—1,660.6 million share
Additional paic-in capital

Unearned ESOP compensat

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive income (li

Common stock in treasury, at cost; 397.4 and 380llibn shares

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

See Notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31,

2005 2004
$ 4,260. $ 1,379.¢
795.¢ 745.%
147.( 147t
646.4 585.(
5,849.° 2,857.¢
1,035.¢ 1,109.¢
1,950.° 1,828.:
1,245.( 1,338.¢
4,231.: 4,276.¢
29,897.. 30,507.
(9,989.) (9,804.)
19,908.( 20,703.:
$ 29,988.! $27,837.!
$ 5440 % —
689.¢ 714.%
567.¢ 331.:
233.t 245.1
158.t 179.¢
1,184.¢ 1,188.:
658.7 862.2
4,036.! 3,520.t
8,937.¢ 8,357.:
892.: 976.7
976.7 781.t
16.€ 16.€
2,797.¢ 2,186.(
(77.4) (82.9)
23,516.( 21,755.1
(733.2) (96.0)
(10,373.0) (9,578.)
15,146.: 14,201.!
$ 29,988.! $27,837.!
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

IN MILLIONS

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile to cash provided by opena
Noncash charges and cred
Cumulative effect of accounting char
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Income taxes audit bene
Shar-based compensatic
Other (including noncash portion of impairment arlder charges
Changes in working capital iterr
Accounts receivabl
Inventories, prepaid expenses and other currepts
Accounts payabl
Income taxe:
Other accrued liabilitie

Cash provided by operations

Investing activities

Property and equipment expenditu
Purchases of restaurant busine:

Sales of restaurant businesses and proj
Other

Cash used for investing activities

Financing activities

Net shor-term borrowings (repayment
Long-term financing issuanc

Long-term financing repaymen

Treasury stock purchas

Common stock dividenc

Proceeds from stock option exerci:

Excess tax benefit on sh-based compensatic
Other

Cash provided by (used for) financing activities
Cash and equivalents increas
Cash and equivalents at beginning of
Cash and equivalents at end of yez
Supplemental cash flow disclosure

Interest paic
Income taxes pai

See Notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
$2602: $2278% $1471.
36.¢
1,249.} 1,201.( 1,148.
(38.9) (171.9 181.4
(178.9) (101.9)
154.1 11.C 7.1
135.¢ 394.7 614.¢
(56.5) (35.9) 64.
(29.4) (14.9) (30.9)
35.¢ 86.7 (77.6)
442.¢ 84.: 125.
19.F 70.2 (170.7)
4,336.¢ 3,903.¢ 3,268.¢
(1,606.  (1,419.)  (1,307.)
(343.5) (149.7) (375.9)
259.1 306. 390.¢
(126.6) (120.9) (77.0
(1,817.9  (1,383.)  (1,369.9
22.7 35.¢ (533.5)
3,107.¢ 225.¢ 398.1
(1,518.)  (1,077.0 (756.9)
(1,202.0) (621.0) (391.0)
(842.0) (695.0) (503.)
768.1 580. 171.

70.1

(44.9) (82.5) (121.9
361.6 (1,633}  (1,736.9
2,880.¢ 887.( 162.4
1,379.¢ 492.¢ 330.2
$4,260. $1,379.6 $ 492
$ 390: $ 370 $ 426
795.1 1,017.¢ 608.




Consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity

Common stock

issued
Unearned
IN MILLIONS, Amount Addlltlolnal ESOP )
EXCEPT PER paid-in compen- Retained
SHARE DATA Shares capital sation earnings

Accumulated other
comprehensive

Common stock in

income (loss) treasury
Deferred
hedging .
adjustment Foreign
currency
translation Shares Amount

Total
shareholder’

equity

Balance at December 31, 2C 1,660.¢ $ 16.€ $1,747.0 $ (98.4) $19,204.:

$ (8.5 $(1,592.9) (392.9) $ (8,987.) $ 10,280.!

Net income 1,471. 1,471..
Translation adjustments
(including tax benefits of
$203.2) 957.¢ 957.¢
Fair value adjustments—cash
flow hedges (including tax
of $1.6) 8.C 8.C
Comprehensive incorr 2,437.:
Common stock cash dividends
($.40 per share (503.5) (503.5)
ESOP loan paymel 7.2 7.2
Treasury stock purchas (18.9 (438.%) (438.9)
Stock option exercises and
other (including tax benefit
of $20.5) 90.2 0.7 12.€ 107.¢ 198.¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 1,660.¢ 16.€ 1,837.! (90.5) 20,172.. (0.5 (635.0 (398.7)) (9,318.H  11,981.¢
Net income 2,278.! 2,278t
Translation adjustments
(including tax benefits of
$106.3) 554.% 554.%
Fair value adjustments—cash
flow hedges (including tax
benefits of $3.3 (15.9) (15.2)
Comprehensive incorr 2,818.(
Common stock cash dividenc
($.55 per share (695.0) (695.0)
ESOP loan paymel 7.8 7.8
Treasury stock purchas (22.2) (605.9) (605.9)
Stock option exercises and
other (including tax benefits
of $87.3) 348.t 0.2 30.2 345.% 694.(
Balance at December 31, 2C 1,660.¢ 16.€ 2,186.( (82.¢) 21,755.! (15.7) (80.9) (390.7) (9,578.) 14,201.
Net income 2,602.: 2,602.:
Translation adjustments
(including taxes of $189.¢ (634.9) (634.9)
Fair value adjustments—cash
flow hedges (including tax
of $5.6) (2.9 (2.9
Comprehensive incorr 1,965.:
Common stock cash dividenc
($.67 per share (842.0) (842.0)
ESOP loan paymel 7.C 7.C
Treasury stock purchas (39.5) (1,228.) (1,228.)
Share-based compensation
expense 152.( 152.(
Stock option exercises and
other (including tax benefit
of $86.9) 459.¢ (1.6 32.¢ 432.¢ 890.€

Balance at December 31, 20t 1,660.¢ $ 16.€ $2,797.t $ (77.4) $23,516.(

$ (185 $ (714.6 (397.) $(10,373.) $ 15,146.:



See Notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of business

The Company primarily franchises and operates Melliis restaurants in the food service industry. Toenpany also operates Boston
Market and Chipotle Mexican Grill (Chipotle) in theS. and has a minority ownership in U.K.-basest RrManger. In December 2003, the
Company sold its Donatos Pizzeria business.

All restaurants are operated either by the Complayyndependent entrepreneurs under the termsnoéffiise arrangements
(franchisees), or by affiliates and developmerntaiisees operating under license agreements.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries. Sabatly all investments in affiliates
owned 50% or less (primarily McDonald’s Japan)areounted for by the equity method.

Estimates in financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ U.S. requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the financial statements and accompagnyities. Actual results could differ fri
those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassifiembnform to current year presentation.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenues consist of sales by Compgaeyated restaurants and fees from restaurantategdry franchisees and affiliates.
Sales by Company-operated restaurants are recagmiza cash basis. Fees from franchised and #filieestaurants include continuing rent
and service fees, initial fees and royalties rezgifrom foreign affiliates and developmental licegs Continuing fees and royalties are
recognized in the period earned. Initial fees amgnized upon opening of a restaurant, which isnathe Company has performed
substantially all initial services required by fn@nchise arrangement.

Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of substantially all op&ras outside the U.S. is the respective local uaygexcept for a small number of countries
with hyperinflationary economies, where the funetibcurrency is the U.S. Dollar.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs included in costs of Compaperated restaurants primarily consist of contidng to advertising cooperatives and were
millions): 2005-$656.5; 2004-$619.5; 2003—-$596rddBction costs for radio and television advergsiprimarily in the U.S., are expensed
when the commercials are initially aired. Thesedprtion costs as well as other marketing-relatg@pges included in selling, general &
administrative expenses were (in millions): 2005:49; 2004-$103.1; 2003-$113.1. In addition, sigaift advertising costs are incurred by
franchisees through separate advertising cooperativindividual markets.

Share-based compensation

Prior to January 1, 2005, the Company accountedHare-based compensation plans under the measuranterecognition provisions of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.2&¢counting for Stock Issued to Employeesl related Interpretations, as permitted by the
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.228punting for Stock-Based Compensafi®RAS No0.123). Accordingly, share-based
compensation was included as a pro forma discldautee financial statement footnotes.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company adoptedatin@alue recognition provisions of the StatemefEinancial Accounting Standai
No0.123(R),Share-Based Payme{8FAS No.123(R)), using the modified-prospectiansgition method. Under this transition method,
compensation cost in 2005 includes the portioningsh the period for (1) all share-based paymenasited prior to, but not vested as of
January 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair \etimated in accordance with the original provisiof SFAS No0.123 and (2) all shdrase!
payments granted subsequent to January 1, 200&] basthe grant date fair value estimated in acoare with the provisions of SFAS
No0.123(R). Results for prior periods have not biestated

In 2005, in connection with the adoption of SFAS M3(R), the Company adjusted the mix of emplogegiterm incentive
compensation by reducing stock options awardedramdasing certain cash-based compensation (ptimarmual incentive-based
compensation) and other equity-based awards. Eall 005 results included pretax expense of $18ildn ($129.7 million after tax or
$0.10 per share) of which $154.1 million relatedhare-based compensation (stock options andatestistock units) and $37.1 million
related to the shift of a portion of share-basadmensation to primarily cash-based. Compensatiperese related to share-based awards is
generally amortized over the vesting period inisgllgeneral & administrative expenses in the Chaated statement of income. As of
December 31, 2005, there was $178.0 million ofl tat@aecognized compensation cost related to noadesdtare-based compensation that is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 2.1 years.
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The following table illustrates the effect on netame and earnings per share for 2004 and 2068 iCbmpany had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No.123 to ops granted under the Company’s stock option plans.

Pro forma disclosure

IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA 2004 2003
As reporte-net income $2,278.8 $1,471.
Add: Total shar-based employee compensation included in reportemhc@me, net of related tax effe 6.8 4.4
Deduct: Total share-based employee compensaticenegpdetermined under fair value method for allrdgjanet of

related tax effect (156.9) (224.7)
Pro formi-net income $2,129.C $1,251.°

Net income per shar

As reporte—basic $ 181 $ 1.1¢
Pro form—basic $ 16 $ .9¢
As reporte—diluted $ 1.7¢ $ 1.1t
Pro form«diluted $ 168 $ .98

The fair value of each stock option granted isnested on the date of grant using a closed-formmgimodel. The following table
presents the weighteairerage assumptions used in the option pricing hfodéhe 2005, 2004 and 2003 stock option grahite expected lifi
of the options represents the period of time th@ap are expected to be outstanding and is basédstorical trends. Expected stock price
volatility is based on the historical volatility tie Company’s stock for a period approximatingekpected life and the expected dividend
yield is based on the Comp¢s most recent annual dividend payout. The risle-frderest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yigide in
effect at the time of grant with a term equal te &xpected life.

Weighted-average assumptions

2005 2004 2003
Expected dividend yiel 1.72% 1.51% 75%
Expected stock price volatilit 27.8% 28.€% 28.1%
Risk-free interest rat 3.97% 3.9%% 3.4€%
Expected life of optionIN YEARS 7 7 7
Fair value per option grantt $10.0¢ $8.44 $5.0¢

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No.123(R), the Conyparesented all benefits of tax deductions resgfiom the exercise of shabase:
compensation as operating cash flows in the Stateafeash flows. SFAS No.123(R) requires the bigsef tax deductions in excess of the
compensation cost recognized for those optionse@xtax benefits) to be classified as financing dasvs. Full year 2005 results included
$70.1 million of excess tax benefits as a finanaagh inflow.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, withedégtion and amortization provided using the giraiine method over the following
estimated useful lives: buildings—up to 40 yearaskhold improvements—the lesser of useful livesséts or lease terms which generally
include option periods; and equipment—three tod#ry.

Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of cost over théamgfible assets and identifiable intangible asskeéequired restaurant businesses. The
Company’s goodwill primarily results from purchasgdMcDonald’s restaurants from franchisees andearsinip increases in international
subsidiaries or affiliates and it is generally gasid to the reporting unit expected to benefit ftbmsynergies of the combination. If a
Company-operated restaurant is sold within 24 mooftacquisition, the goodwill associated with #eguisition is written off in its entirety.
If a restaurant is sold beyond 24 months from ttuisition, the amount of goodwill written off isbed on the relative fair value of the
business sold compared to the portion of the reqprinit (defined as each individual country for Minmald’s restaurant business as well as
each individual non-McDonald’s brand) that will ketained.

The annual goodwill impairment test in the fourtlagter compares the fair value of a reporting wenherally based on discounted
future cash flows, with its carrying amount inclgligoodwill. If the carrying amount of a reportiagit exceeds its fair value, an impairment
loss is measured as the difference between théeidhfair value of the reporting unit’'s goodwill atfte carrying amount of goodwiill.

The following table presents the 2005 activity aodwill by segment.

Latin America Other Consolidatec
IN MILLIONS u.s Europe  APMEA® canada @
Balance at December 31, 2C $792.¢ $565.¢ $ 2141 $ 87.E $115.C $53. $ 1,828.:

Net restaurant purchas 105.2 23.€ 6.8 54 11.4 152.7



Ownership increases in subsidiaries/affili 41.2 19.c 60.5
Currency translation and oth (73.7) (8.9 14.c 4C (27.2 (90.8)

Balance at December 31, 2005 $897.¢ $557.¢ $ 2121 $ 126.5 $130.« $26.2 $ 1,950.°

@  APMEA represents Asia/Pacific, Middle East and dsr

@  Other represents non-McDonald’s brands.
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Long-lived assets

In accordance with the Statement of Financial Aotimg Standards No.14Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longed Assets
long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment alipirathe fourth quarter and whenever events angfes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recover&blepurposes of annually reviewing McDonald’s aesant assets for potential
impairment, assets are initially grouped togethier television market level in the U.S. and at antoy level for each of the international
markets. If an indicator of impairment (e.g., négabperating cash flows for the most recent ingil24month period) exists for any groupi

of assets, an estimate of undiscounted future ft@sis produced by each individual restaurant witthia asset grouping is compared to its
carrying value. If an asset is determined to beqiingal, the loss is measured by the excess of tingimg amount of the asset over its fair ve
as determined by an estimate of discounted futasa dows.

Losses on assets held for disposal are recognibhed management has approved and committed to agpthspose of the assets, the
assets are available for disposal, the dispogabisable of occurring within 12 months, and thesadés proceeds are expected to be less thar
its net book value. Generally, such losses retatsther restaurants that have closed and ceaszdtmms or businesses or restaurants that are
available for sale.

Financial instruments

The Company generally borrows on a long-term basikis exposed to the impact of interest rate obmagd foreign currency fluctuations.
The Company uses foreign currency denominatedatebterivative instruments to manage the impatitede changes. The Company does
not use derivatives with a level of complexity athna risk higher than the exposures to be hedgdddaes not hold or issue derivatives for
trading purposes.

The counterparties to these agreements consisliobese group of financial institutions. The Compa&ontinually monitors its
positions and the credit ratings of its counteiiparand adjusts positions as appropriate. The Coyngia not have significant exposure to ¢
individual counterparty at December 31, 2005 arglrhaster agreements that contain netting arrangsnt@ertain of these agreements also
require each party to post collateral if creditmgs fall below, or aggregate exposures exceethioerontractual limits. At December 31, 21
and 2004, the Company was required to post cadlatéi$24.2 million and $45.6 million, respectively

The Statement of Financial Accounting Standard4 8 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivties (SFAS
No0.133), as amended, requires companies to recogfliderivatives as either assets or liabilitrethie balance sheet at fair value. SF
No0.133 also requires companies to designate dllateres that qualify as hedging instruments asvfalue hedges, cash flow hedge:
hedges of net investments in foreign operationss d@signation is based upon the exposure beingeled

All derivatives, primarily interest rate exchanggeements and foreign currency exchange agreemvests classified in the
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2003G0% respectively, as follows: miscellaneous o#ssets—$83.3 and $101.6 million;
other long-term liabilities (excluding accrued i@st)-$102.7 and $218.1 million; and accrued pawrad other liabilities—$1.3 and $16.7
million. In addition, for the year ended Decembgr 3005, the Company recorded prepaid expensesthadcurrent assets of $6.5 million.
All derivative settlements were classified in Otfirancing activities in the consolidated statenatash flows.

There was no significant impact to the Companytsiegs related to the ineffective portion of anylgimg instruments for the three
years ended December 31, 20

» Fair value hedge

The Company enters into fair value hedges to rethexposure to changes in the fair values ofitedssets or liabilities. The types of fair
value hedges the Company enters into includenféjest rate exchange agreements to convert apatits fixed-rate debt to floating-rate
debt and (2) foreign currency exchange agreementhé exchange of various currencies and inteadss. The foreign currency exchange
agreements are entered into to hedge the curr@icgssociated with debt and inter-company loam®aénated in foreign currencies, and
essentially result in floating-rate assets or liabs denominated in U.S. Dollars or appropriatadtional currencies.

For fair value hedges, the gains or losses on digras as well as the offsetting gains or lossethenelated hedged items are recogr
in current earnings.

e Cash flow hedges

The Company enters into cash flow hedges to rethecexposure to variability in certain expectedifatcash flows. The types of cash flow
hedges the Company enters into include: (1) inteads exchange agreements that effectively coravpdrtion of floating-rate debt to fixed-
rate debt and are designed to reduce the impactavést rate changes on future interest expe8séoriwvard foreign exchange contracts and
foreign currency options that are designed to ptatgainst the reduction in value of forecasteditpr currency cash flows such as royalties
and other payments denominated in foreign currenaied (3) foreign currency exchange agreementhéoexchange of various currencies
and interest rates. The foreign currency exchaggeements hedge the currency risk associated whhahd intercompany loans
denominated in foreign currencies, and essentialylt in fixed-rate assets or liabilities denonéakin U.S. Dollars or appropriate functional
currencies.

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion ofda@s or losses on derivatives is reported in #ferded hedging adjustment component
of accumulated other comprehensive income in sloddels’ equity and reclassified into
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earnings in the same period or periods in whichhiébdged transaction affects earnings. The remapirgor loss in excess of the cumulative
change in the present value of future cash flonth@hedged item, if any, is recognized in earnthgsng the period of change.

The Company recorded after tax adjustments retatedsh flow hedges to the deferred hedging adgistmomponent of accumulated
other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equitych the majority relates to foreign currency lexaege agreements that hedge long-term
intercompany loans. The Company recorded net deeseat $2.8 million and $15.2 million for the yearsled December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, and a net increase of $8.0 milliontfie year ended December 31, 2003. Based on éhtetes and foreign currency exchange
rates at December 31, 2005, no significant amofideferred hedging adjustments, after tax, incluideaccumulated other comprehensive
income in shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2@@5be recognized in earnings in 2006 as theaunlyihg hedged transactions are
realized. The maximum maturity date of any castvfh@dge of forecasted transactions at Decembe2(®5 was 15 months, excluding
instruments hedging forecasted payments of variabdeest on existing financial instruments thatdgarious maturity dates through 2013.

» Hedges of net investments in foreign operat

The Company uses forward foreign exchange contrmrtsign currency exchange agreements and foigency denominated debt to
hedge its investments in certain foreign subsidgand affiliates. Realized and unrealized traiosiatdjustments from these hedges are
included in shareholders’ equity in the foreignreuacy translation component of accumulated otherprehensive income and offset
translation adjustments on the underlying net asseforeign subsidiaries and affiliates, whichoadse recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Coynanorded an increase in translation adjustmendéscumulated other
comprehensive income of $356.8 million after tascliided in the net decrease of $634.3 million afstation adjustments in the consolidated
statement of shareholders’ equity), related pritpdoi foreign currency denominated debt designatetedges of net investments. During the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Compeorded a decrease in translation adjustmeragsdnmulated other comprehens
income of $190.7 million and $378.1 million, resireely, after tax, related to hedges of net invesits.

Asset retirement obligations

The Statement of Financial Accounting StandardsId8,Accounting for Asset Retirement ObligatigB8&AS No. 143), became effective
January 1, 2003 and requires legal obligationscaatsal with the retirement of long-lived assetbéarecognized at their fair value at the time
that the obligations are incurred. Upon initialognition of a liability, the cost is capitalized part of the related lonlived asset and allocat
to expense over the useful life of the asset.rbi §uarter 2003, the Company recorded a noncaaigelof $36.8 million after tax ($0.03 per
diluted share) related to lease obligations inadelinternational markets to reflect the cumulag¥iect of this accounting change. There is

a material effect to the Company’s ongoing resofitsperations or financial position related to SAR& 143.

Sales of stock by subsidiaries and affiliates

As permitted by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 5kied by the Securities and Exchange Commissiom atseibsidiary or affiliate sells
unissued shares in a public offering, the Compangnds an adjustment to reflect an increase oedserin the carrying value of its
investment and a resulting nonoperating gain @.los

Income tax contingencies

The Company, like other multi-national companiegegularly audited by federal, state and foreggnauthorities, and tax assessments may
arise several years after tax returns have besth #iccordingly, tax reserves have been recordeshvith management’s judgement it is not
probable that the Company’s tax position will ultitely be sustained. While predicting the outcom#hefaudits involves uncertainty and
requires estimates and informed judgements, we\rethat the recorded tax liabilities are adeqaattappropriate. The judgements and
estimates made at a point in time may change b@s#ue outcome of tax audits, as well as changes firther interpretation of regulations.
Income tax expense is adjusted in the period irtkvttiese events occur or when the statute of limita for a specific exposure item has
expired.

Per common share information

Diluted net income per common share is calculasidgunet income divided by diluted weighted-aversigares. Diluted weighted-average
shares include weighted-average shares outstaptlindhe dilutive effect of shateased employee compensation calculated usingehsur
stock method. The dilutive effect of stock optiaves (in millions of shares): 2005-13.8; 2004-12aN3-6.7. Stock options that were not
included in diluted weighted-average shares bectnggewould have been antidilutive were (in milkoof shares): 2005-44.4; 2004-85.5;
2003-159.1.

Statement of cash flows

The Company considers sheerm, highly liquid investments with an original taaty of 90 days or less to be cash equivalenti® impact o
fluctuating foreign currencies on cash and equivslevas not material.
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IMPAIRMENT AND OTHER CHARGES (CREDITS), NET

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003
Restaurant closings/impairme $22.¢ $130.F $135.F
Restructuring (51.2) 272.]
Lease accounting correctis 159.¢

Total $(28.4) $290.« $407.¢

e Restaurant closings/impairme

In 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded $22.8 mikiod $130.5 million of pretax charges for impainteespectively, primarily due to
South Korea and its continued poor results.

In 2003, the $135.5 million of net pretax chargessisted of: $147.7 million primarily related topairment in Latin America; $29.6
million for about 50 restaurant closings associatél strategic actions in Latin America; and a $4tillion favorable adjustment to the
2002 charge for restaurant closings, primarily ttuabout 85 fewer closings than originally anti¢guh

e Restructuring

In 2005, the Company recorded $51.2 million of axeahcome, primarily due to favorable adjustmeptated to the conversion of a market to
a developmental licensee in APMEA and certain litdé established in 2001 and 2002 due to lowantbriginally anticipated employee-
related and lease termination costs.

In 2003, the $272.1 million of charges consisteds@B7.0 million related to the loss on the sal®ohatos Pizzeria, the closing of
Donatos and Boston Market restaurants outside tBedhd the exit of a domestic joint venture widizéli's; and $35.1 million related to the
revitalization plan actions of McDonald’s Japan.

« Lease accounting correctic

During 2004, like other companies in the restauaauut retail industries, McDonald’s reviewed its@atting practices and policies with
respect to leasing transactions. Following thisenenand in consultation with its external auditdvisDonald’s corrected an error in its prior
practices to conform the lease term used in caloglatraight-line rent expense with the term usedmortize improvements on leased
property. The result of the correction primarilycalerated the recognition of rent expense undéaicdieases that include fixed-rent
escalations by revising the computation of stralgie rent expense to include these escalationsddain option periods. As the correction
related solely to accounting treatment, it did aféct McDonald'’s historical or future cash flowstbe timing of payments under the related
leases. Its effect on the Company’s earnings pemesicash from operations and shareholders’ egquat/immaterial. These adjustments
primarily impacted the U.S., China, Boston Marked &hipotle. Other markets were less significamtipacted, as many of the leases outside
of the U.S. do not contain fixed-rent escalations.

OTHER OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE, NET

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003
Gains on sales of restaurant busine $(44.7) $(45.0 $(545
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (52.¢) (60.0) (36.9
Asset dispositions and other expe 207.¢ 255.¢ 215.¢
Other operating expense, | $110.2 $150.6 $124.(

» Gains on sales of restaurant businesses

Gains on sales of restaurant businesses include gam sales of Company-operated restaurants thasvgains from exercises of purchase
options by franchisees with business facilitieséearrangements (arrangements where the Compasgsltee businesses, including
equipment, to franchisees who have options to @selhe businesses). The Company’s purchases lassausinesses with its franchisees
and affiliates are aimed at achieving an optimahemship mix in each market. Resulting gains ordeswe recorded in operating income
because the transactions are a recurring partrdfuginess.

e Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates-hasses in which the Company actively participaigsdoes not control-is reported after
interest expense and income taxes, except forrdsgaurant partnerships, which are reported béficeame taxes.

» Asset dispositions and other expe

Asset dispositions and other expense consistsing ga losses on excess property and other asgmasiiions, provisions for contingencies
and uncollectible receivables and other miscellas@xpenses.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT



Net property and equipment consisted

December 31,

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004

Land $ 4,486.¢ $ 4,661.:
Buildings and improvements on owned l¢ 10,104 10,260..
Buildings and improvements on leased i 10,243. 10,520.
Equipment, signs and seati 4,468.. 4,426.:
Other 593.7 639.€

29,897.. 30,507.

Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (9,989.) (9,804.°)
Net property and equipme $19,908.( $20,703.:

Depreciation and amortization expense was (in om#l): 2005—-$1,186.7; 2004-$1,138.3; 2003-$1,113.3.
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FRANCHISE ARRANGEMENTS

Individual franchise arrangements generally incladease and a license and provide for paymemitidlifees, as well as continuing rent and
service fees to the Company based upon a perceated with minimum rent payments that parallelGoenpany’s underlying leases and
escalations (on properties that are leased). McEtnfranchisees are granted the right to operatstaurant using the McDonald’s System
and, in most cases, the use of a restaurant fagkinerally for a period of 20 years. Franchigegsrelated occupancy costs including
property taxes, insurance and maintenance. Iniaddftanchisees outside the U.S. generally pafandable, noninterest-bearing security
deposit. Foreign affiliates and developmental lggas pay a royalty to the Company based upon amgestsales.

The results of operations of restaurant busingsseshased and sold in transactions with franchjseéBates and others were not
material to the consolidated financial statemeoitgériods prior to purchase and sale.

Revenues from franchised and affiliated restauremmsisted of:

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003
Rents and service fe $5,070.8 $4,804.¢ $4,302.:
Initial fees 38.C 36.1 43.C
Revenues from franchised and affiliated restaur $5,108.F $4,840.¢ $4,345.:

Future minimum rent payments due to the Companguexiisting franchise arrangements are:

Leased

IN MILLIONS Owned sites sites Total

2006 $ 1,030 $ 774¢€ $ 1,804.¢
2007 999.4 753.2 1,752.7
2008 965.¢ 732.% 1,698.*
2009 926.¢ 706.( 1,632.¢
2010 885.¢ 675.¢ 1,561.¢
Thereaftel 6,757.«  4,978. 11,736.:
Total minimum payment $11,565." $8,621.. $20,186.!

At December 31, 2005, net property and equipmedéeufranchise arrangements totaled $9.8 billionliding land of $2.9 billion) aft
deducting accumulated depreciation and amortizatf.8 billion.

LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

At December 31, 2005, the Company was the lessk®, AT2 restaurant locations through ground legtkesCompany leases the land and the
Company or franchisee owns the building) and thiaoagproved leases (the Company leases land andihgsl). Lease terms for most
restaurants are generally for 20 years and, in nsasgs, provide for rent escalations and renewtaroy with certain leases providing
purchase options. Escalation terms vary by geograggment with examples including fixed-rent eatiahs, escalations based on an
inflation index, and fairalue market adjustments. The timing of these asicais generally ranges from annually to every jigars. For mos
locations, the Company is obligated for the relatecupancy costs including property taxes, inswamd maintenance. However, for
franchised sites, the Company requires the frarekiso pay these costs. In addition, the Compatheitessee under noncancelable leases
covering certain offices and vehicles.

Future minimum payments required under existingatpey leases with initial terms of one year or enare:

IN MILLIONS Restaurant Other Total

2006 $1,009.¢ $62.C $ 1,071.¢
2007 958.4 51.z 1,009.7
2008 898.( 41.C 939.(
2009 828.F 36.1 864.¢
2010 764.% 30.t 795.2
Thereaftel 6,478.: 175.c 6,653.¢
Total minimum payment $10,937.! $396.2 $11,333.

The following table provides detail of rent expense

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003

Compan-operated restauran
Uu.s.@ $ 1667 $ 136.6 $ 136.C



Outside the U.S 483.¢ 446.( 398.4

Total 650.¢ 582.¢ 535.2
Franchised restauran
U.S. 320.% 296.( 279.€
Outside the U.< 287.¢ 280.2 250.7
Total 608.¢ 576.2 530.2
Other 102.¢ 94.t 87.2
Total rent expens $1,362.( $1,253.! $1,152.¢

@  Includes rent expense of Boston Market and Chigdt{e millions): 200-$87.9; 2004—$70.2; 2003-$70.9.

Rent expense included percent rents in excessrofmam rents (in millions) as follows—Company-opedtestaurants: 2005-$96.2;
2004-$84.4; 2003-$73.2. Franchised restaurant&-31012.5; 2004-$97.3; 2003—-$80.3.

The 2004 rent expense above excludes a corredti®b5®.9 million ($20.8 million for 2004 and $13%illion for prior years) in the
Company’s lease accounting practices made in 288d.Impairment and other charges (credits), ndtftiter discussion.
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INCOME TAXES
Income before provision for income taxes and cutiudaeffect of accounting change, classified byrsewf income, was as follows:

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003
u.S. $2,051.. $1,575.. $1,150.¢
Outside the U.< 1,650.: 1,627 1,195.¢
Income before provision for income taxes and cutiudaeffect of accounting chani $3,701.¢ $3,202.. $2,346.

The provision for income taxes, classified by tha@ng and location of payment, was as follows:

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003
U.S. federafv $ 610.2 $ 557.¢ $177.¢
U.S. stateV 103.¢ 56.4 58.¢
Outside the U.S 423.¢ 481.F 420.1

Current tax provisiol 1,137.7 1,095.¢ 656.¢
U.S. federa (14.¢) (178.¢)  180.1
U.S. state (2.4 10.€ 12.¢
QOutside the U.< (21.3) (4.2 (11.9

Deferred tax provision (benefi (38.9) (171.9 181.
Provision for income taxe $1,099.. $ 923.¢ $838.

@ Inlate 2005, the Company repatriated approximagsybillion of the earnings of foreign subsidiariasaccordance with the Homelai
Investment Act (HIA) and recorded a federal taxezge of $104.1 million and a state tax expens @f illion.

Net deferred tax liabilities consisted of:

December 31,

IN MILLIONS 2005 2004
Property and equipme $1,412.° $ 1,407.¢
Other 143. 211.(

Total deferred tax liabilitie 1,556.: 1,618.¢
Intangible asse (286.5) (301.5)
Operating loss carryforwart (318.9 (269.9
Employee benefit plar (217.9) (134.))
Property and equipme (214.9) (184.9
Capital loss carryforwarc (91.0 (182.%)
Unrealized foreign exchange los: (88.4) (383.9)
Foreign tax credit carryforwart (17.2) (32.2)
Other (344.9 (361.9

Total deferred tax assets before valuation allow: (1,578.)) (1,850.9)
Valuation allowanct 467.1 531.%
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 444.¢ $ 300.:
Balance sheet presentatic
Deferred income taxe $ 9765 $ 781t
Other asse-miscellaneou: (404.9) (380.0)
Current asse-prepaid expenses and other current a (127.0 (101.7)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 444.¢ $ 300.:

The statutory U.S. federal income tax rate recesdib the effective income tax rates as follc



2005 2004 2003

Statutory U.S. federal income tax ri 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of related federal incardénefit 1.8 14 2.3
Benefits and taxes related to foreign operat (4.9 (7.€) 1.1
Settlement of Federal tax au (4.9 (4.4)
Repatriation of foreign earnings under F 2.8

Impairment and other charges (credits), Het 2 1.C 2.5
Other, ne (.5 (:9) (-8)
Effective income tax rate 29.% 28.©% 35.1%

@  Certain of these items were not tax effected.

Deferred U.S. income taxes have not been recotdobkis differences related to investments iregeforeign subsidiaries and
corporate joint ventures. These basis differencagapproximately $3.9 billion at December 31, 2808 consisted primarily of
undistributed earnings considered permanently tedkeis operations outside the U.S. Determinatiothefdeferred income tax liability on
these unremitted earnings is not practicable becauesh liability, if any, is dependent on circumstas existing if and when remittance
occurs.

SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company operates in the food service induReyenues consist of sales by Company-operatediraata and fees from restaurants
operated by franchisees and affiliates. Fees framchised and affiliated restaurants include caoiirigh rent and service fees, initial fees, and
royalties received from foreign affiliates and depenental licensees. All intercompany revenuesexmknses are eliminated in computing
revenues and operating income. Operating incomedas the Company’s share of operating resultsfilibées after interest expense and
income taxes, except for U.S. affiliates, which rmmgorted before income taxes. Royalties and gthgments from subsidiaries outside the
U.S. were (in millions): 2005-$840.6; 2004-$782003-$684.5.

Corporate general & administrative expenses afaded in the corporate segment of operating incanteconsist of home office
support costs in areas such as facilities, finahaman resources, information technology, legatketing, restaurant operations, supply cl
and training. Corporate assets include corporath aad equivalents, asset portions of financingungents and home office facilities.
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IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003

u.S. $ 6,955.: $ 6,525.¢ $ 6,039.:
Europe 7,071.¢ 6,736.! 5,874.¢
APMEA 2,815.¢ 2,721.: 2,447 ¢
Latin America 1,326.¢ 1,007.¢ 858.¢
Canade 947.¢ 898.1 777.¢
Other 1,342.¢ 1,175.! 1,142.(
Total revenue $20,460.: $19,064. $17,140.!
u.sS. $ 2,421« $ 2,181 $ 1,982.:
Europe 1,449.: 1,471.; 1,339.;
APMEA 345.1 200.¢ 226.:
Latin America 29.€ (19.6 (170.9
Canade 155.F 178.( 163.2
Other 25.2 (16.9 (295.])
Corporate (404.¢) (454.9) (412.%)
Total operating incomé $ 4,021.¢2 $ 35401 $ 2,832.1™
u.s. $ 8,968.! $ 8,551.! $ 8,549.:
Europe 9,424.¢ 10,389.! 9,462.:
APMEA 3,596. 3,853.( 3,773.
Latin America 1,652.¢ 1,496.¢ 1,412..
Canad: 1,237.: 1,162. 1,007.(
Other 686.2 653.7 574.¢
Corporate 4,422 ¢ 1,730.¢ 1,059.:
Total asset $29,988.! $27,837.! $25,838.!
u.S. $ 642. $ 486.7 $ 482.:
Europe 449t 445.( 404.¢
APMEA 197.1 157.¢ 122.1
Latin America 84.€ 62.€ 78.4
Canade 64.t 87.t 63.€
Other 128.t 115. 132.¢
Corporate 39.¢ 64.: 23.C
Total capital expenditure $ 1,606.¢ $ 1,419. $ 1,307.
u.s. $ 385.¢ $ 394.¢ $ 395.1
Europe 427 .k 422.¢ 382.¢
APMEA 168.: 165.¢ 156.k
Latin America 77.5 66.: 64.:
Canade 62.2 51.¢ 46.7
Other 64.C 51.C 53.1
Corporate 64.2 49.C 50.1
Total depreciation and amortizati $ 1,249. $ 1,201.( $ 1,148.:

@  Includes $191.2 million of she-based and related compensation expense for yeh2@05 (U.S.—$56.3;Europe—$48.3; APMEA1®;
Latin Americ—$7.6; Canada—$7.7; Other—$3.4; and Corporate—$i@-6r comparability purposes to 2005, the pro faramounts for
2004 and 2003, as reported in the Company’s ForaKX6r 2004, were $241.2 million and $354.4 millisaespectively (U.S.-6B.8 anc
$104.7; Europe-$48.7 and $71.2; APMEA-$22.3 andZ32tin America—$8.9 and $12.2; Canada—$8.1 ahd.$; Other—$5.8 and
$8.9; and Corporat-$78.6 and $110.3

See Impairment and other charges (credits), ned fantfurther discussion of the following items:

@  Includes ($28.4) million of net credits (Eur—$4.1; APMEA—($9.1); Latin America—$2.4; and Corgiar($25.8)) related to the
conversion of a market to a developmental licemsekereversal of certain restructuring liabilitiegartly offset by asset impairment
charges.

@  Includes $290.4 million of charges (L—$79.8; Europe—$27.0; APMEA-$138.7; Latin America4$Canada—$3.8; and Other—-$39.0)
related to a correction in the Compé's lease accounting practices and policies and &gpsetiwill impairment

@  Includes $407.6 million of charges (credits) (\-($11.4); Europe—($20.0); APMEA-$54.9; Latin Ama¥fi$108.9; Canada—($1.2);
Other-$266.1; and Corporate—$10.3) primarily reldt® the disposition of certain non-McDonald’s bdasrend asset/goodwill



impairment.

Total long-lived assets, primarily property and ipguent, were (in millions)—Consolidated: 2005-$52®; 2004—-$24,390.8; 2003—
$23,405.9. U.S. based: 2005-$9,556.4; 2004-$9,2200B-$9,067.2.

DEBT FINANCING
Line of credit agreements

At December 31, 2005, the Company had a $1.3 billiee of credit agreement expiring in 2010 witkdeof 0.08% per annum on the total
commitment, which remained unused. Fees and intextes on this line are based on the Company®-term credit rating assigned by
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. In addition, certsibsidiaries outside the U.S. had unused linesedfit totaling $774.0 million at
December 31, 2005; these were principally shortxtand denominated in various currencies at locaketaates of interest.

As a result of the Company’s decision to repatriateign earnings under HIA, certain wholly-ownetbsidiaries outside the U.S.
entered into a multi-currency term loan facilityaing $2.9 billion in 2005. The loan has a thresiyterm with the ability to prepay without
penalty. The loan agreement stipulates future negays of borrowings reduce the amount availableeutite facility. Notes payable reflects
the Company’s intention to repay $544.0 milliortHiA-related borrowings in 2006. The weighted-averagerest rate of the borrowings
under the HIA multi-currency term loan facility was8% at December 31, 2005.

The weighted-average interest rate of short-termolongs, excluding HIA-related borrowings, was%.at December 31, 2005 (based
on $423.4 million of foreign currency bank line bmwings) and 4.4% at December 31, 2004 (based 87.33nillion of foreign currency
bank line borrowings).

Fair values

At December 31, 2005, the fair value of the Compmdgbt obligations was estimated at $10.4 billiompared to a carrying amount of
$10.1 billion. This fair value was estimated usuagious pricing models or discounted cash flow ps®s that incorporated quoted market
prices. The Company has no current plans to ratsignificant amount of its debt prior to maturity.

The carrying amounts for both cash and equival@ntésnotes receivable approximate fair value. Fareigrency and interest rate

exchange agreements, foreign currency options @mehfd foreign exchange contracts were recordékdrconsolidated balance sheet at fair
value
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estimated using various pricing models or discadicgesh flow analyses that incorporated quoted markees. No fair value was estimated
for noninterest-bearing security deposits by frages, because these deposits are an integraiffibet overall franchise arrangements.

Debt obligations

The Company has incurred debt obligations printyghrough public and private offerings and ban&rs. There are no provisions in the
Companys debt obligations that would accelerate repayraedébt as a result of a change in credit ratings material adverse change in
Company’s business. Certain of the Company’s delgations contain cross-acceleration provisioms] gestrictions on Company and
subsidiary mortgages and the long-term debt ohgedubsidiaries. Under certain agreements, thepgaosnhas the option to retire debt prior
to maturity, either at par or at a premium over. par

The following table summarizes the Company’s dddhigations. (Interest rates reflected in the tab&ude the effects of interest rate
and foreign currency exchange agreements.)

Amounts

Interest rates?) outstanding
December 31 December 31
Maturity 2005 2004
IN MILLIONS OF U.S. DOLLARS dates 2005 2004
Fixed-original issué? 48 4% $2917.¢ $3,338.:
Fixed-converted via exchange agreeménts 4.3 3.¢ (1,122.% (1,694.9
Floating 4.2 2.€ 196.¢ 916.1
Total U.S.Dollars 200¢€-202¢ 1,992.: 2,559.:
Fixed 34 4.2 618.¢ 1,024.°
Floating 2.6 2.4 3,019.¢ 1,867.:
Total Euro 200¢€-201¢ 3,638.: 2,891.¢
Fixed 6.C 6.C 960.( 1,147.(
Floating 4.8 — 947 .4 —
Total British Pounds Sterlin 200€-2032 1,907 .- 1,147.(
Total Japanese Y-fixed 200¢-203C 2.C 1.¢ 808.¢ 1,076.¢
Fixed 3.7 6.2 347.( 2942
Floating 4.8 3.4 1,255.¢ 948.1]
Total other currencie® 200¢-201¢ 1,602.¢ 1,242.;
Debt obligations before fair value adjustmepits 9,949.: 8,916.¢
Fair value adjustmentd 191.( 302.€
Total debt obligation§) $10,140.. $9,219.

@  Weighted-average effective rate, computed on aasemal basis.

@  Includes $150 million of debentures that matur027, which are subordinated to senior debt and/jgie for the ability to defe
interest payments up to five years under certaimd@@mns.

@ A portion of U.S. Dollar fixe-rate debt effectively has been converted intoratherencies and/or into floatingate debt through the u
of exchange agreements. The rates shown reflefixéabrate on the receivable portion of the exafmagreements. All other
obligations in this table reflect the net effectshese and other exchange agreeme

@  Primarily consists of Chinese Renminbi, Hong Korudl&s, Korean Won, Australian Dollars, Swiss Frarand Singapore Dollar:

®  Aggregate maturities for 2005 debt balances, befairevalue adjustments, were as follows(in milBpr2006$1,202.7; 2007-$886.9;
2008-$3,089.1; 2009-$359.4; 2010-$1,571.4; theeea$2,839.6. These amounts include a reclassifinatf short-term obligations
totaling $1.1 billion to lon-term obligations as they are supported by a -term line of credit agreement expiring in 20

©®  SFAS No0.133 requires that the underlying itemainvialue hedges, in this case debt obligationside®rded at fair value. The related
hedging instrument is also recorded at fair valneither miscellaneous other assets or other la@rgztliabilities. A portion ($81.6
million) of the adjustments at December 31, 200&teel to interest rate exchange agreements thae weaminated in December 2002
and will amortize as a reduction of interest exmeager the remaining life of the de



Includes notes payable, current maturities of Fterm debt and long-term debt included in the cdidated balance sheet. The increase
in debt obligations from December 31, 2004 to Ddman31, 2005 was due to net issuances related £o(f52,851.3 million), partly
offset by net repayments ($1,239.0 million), thegaiat of changes in exchange rates on foreign cusretenominated debt ($580.1
million) and SFAS No0.133 n-cash fair value adjustments ($111.6 millic

ESOP loans and other guarantees

At December 31, 2005, the Company has guarantestthaluded in total debt $2.3 million of Notes isslby the Leveraged Employee Stock
Ownership Plan (ESOP) with payments through 20@8rdvings related to the ESOP at December 31, 208&h include $84.1 million of
loans from the Company to the ESOP and the $2I&mibf Notes guaranteed by the Company, are rifteas long-term debt with a
corresponding reduction of shareholders’ equityefuned ESOP compensation). The ESOP is repayirigahs and interest through 2018
using Company contributions and dividends fronMtDonald’s common stock holdings. As the principal amourthefborrowings is repai
the debt and the unearned ESOP compensation aig fieeiuced.

The Company also has guaranteed certain affiliadecther loans totaling $45.7 million at Decembkr Z05. These guarantees are
contingent commitments generally issued by the Gompo support borrowing arrangements of certal. [gartnerships and franchisees,
certain affiliates outside the U.S. The terms efgluarantees vary and are equal to the remainingdgthe related debt. At December 31,
2005, there was no carrying value for obligationdar these guarantees in the consolidated baléieest. s
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company’s Profitrtgaand Savings Plan for U.S.-based employeesded a 401(k) feature, a leveraged
employee stock ownership (ESOP) feature, and aedisnary employer profit sharing match. The 40X@gture allows participants to make
pretax contributions that are partly matched frdrares released under the ESOP. The Profit Shanth@avings Plan also provides for a
discretionary employer profit sharing match atéhe of the year for those participants who haveritmrted to the 401(k) feature.

All contributions and related earnings can be itegén several investment alternatives as well aBdhald’s common stock in
accordance with each participant’s elections.

Employees of Boston Market and Chipotle participata separate retirement plan known as the McRbs&lentures 401(k) Plan. The
Ventures Plan includes 401(k) and matching featdrias investment alternatives for the Ventures Rlanidentical to the McDonald'’s Profit
Sharing and Savings Plan.

The Company also maintains certain supplementadfiigsians. At the end of 2004, the Company frdmenonqualified, unfunded
Supplemental Plan that it previously maintained iuehanges under Section 409A of the Internal RegeCode, so that no new contributi
or changes will be made to the Supplemental Plactive January 1, 2005, the Company adopted an@wqualified, unfunded Excess
Benefit and Deferred Bonus Plan that allows paréints to (i) make tax-deferred contributions afdéceive Company-provided allocations
that cannot be made under the Profit Sharing anth§s Plan and Ventures 401(k) Plan because ofriaté&kevenue Service limitations. The
investment alternatives and returns in the ExcesgeBt and Deferred Bonus Plan, and also the fr&eplemental Plan are based on certain
market-rate investment alternatives under the P8tfaring and Savings Plan. Total combined liaégdiunder the frozen Supplemental Plan
and the new Excess Benefit and Deferred Bonuswéaie $366.5 million at December 31, 2005 and $360lon at December 31, 2004 a
were included in other long-term liabilities in tbensolidated balance sheet.

The Company has entered into derivative contracketige market-driven changes in certain of thepeapental Plan and Excess
Benefit and Deferred Bonus Plan liabilities. At Batber 31, 2005, derivatives with a fair value dd $6million indexed to the Company’s
stock and $60.1 million indexed to certain markelicGes were included in miscellaneous other agséte consolidated balance sheet. All
changes in liabilities for these nonqualified plansl in the fair value of the derivatives are rdeadrin selling, general & administrative
expenses. Changes in fair value of the derivaiivéasxed to the Company’s stock are recorded inrtb@me statement because the contracts
provide the counterparty with a choice to settleash or shares.

Total U.S. costs for the Profit Sharing and SaviRtg and Ventures 401(k) Plan, including nongieglibenefits and related hedging
activities, were (in millions): 2005-$61.0; 2004-8¥5 2003—-$60.3.

Certain subsidiaries outside the U.S. also offefipsharing, stock purchase or other similar beénefins. Total plan costs outside the
U.S. were (in millions): 2005-$54.1; 2004-$47.8026$43.9.

Other postretirement benefits and postemploymemefits were immaterial.
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

At December 31, 2005, the Company had share-basadensation plans, which authorized the grantingaabus equity-based incentives
including stock options, restricted stock and ret&td stock units (RSUs) to employees and nonenaglaljrectors. The number of shares of
common stock reserved for issuance under the plassl93.7 million at December 31, 2005, includidgdimillion available for future
grants.

Stock options

Stock options to purchase common stock are grawitidan exercise price equal to the market prickhefCompany’s stock at the date of
grant. Substantially all of the options become eigable in four equal installments, beginning aryeam the date of the grant, and generally
expire 10 years from the grant date. Options grhhegween May 1, 1999 and December 31, 2000 (appadely 32 million options current
outstanding) expire 13 years from the date of grant

Intrinsic value for stock options is defined as diféerence between the current market value aadytant price. During 2005, the total
intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $29fillion. Cash received from stock options ex&edi during 2005 was $768.1 million and
the actual tax benefit realized for tax deductifsam stock options exercised totaled $85.7 millibhe Company uses treasury shares
purchased under the Company’s historical sharercbpse program to satisfy share-based exercises.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stockaspgjrants as of December 31, 2005, 2004 and 20@3;leEanges during the years
then ended, is presented in the following table.

2005 2004 2003
Weighted-
average
remaining
Shares Weighted- contractual Shares Weighted- Shares Weighted-
IN . Aggregate IN IN
MILLIONS average life o MILLIONS average i | |oNs average
exercise IN intrinsic exercise exercise
Options price YEARS value price price
Outstanding at beginning of ye 166.¢ $ 27.8( 1942 $ 26.9( 198.¢ $ 27.5i
Granted 7.1 32.5¢ 20.1 26.1( 23.€ 14.9¢
Exercisec (32.7) 23.87 (30.0 20.1¢ (12.€) 15.1¢
Forfeited/expirec (5.0 30.4¢4 (17.9 28.9¢ (15.7) 27.0i
Outstanding at end of ye 136.5 $ 28.9( 5.7¢ $ 657.¢ 166.¢ $ 27.8( 1942 $ 26.9(
Exercisable at end of ye 103.2 $ 30.2: 5.06 $ 361. 114.5 122.¢

RSUs

RSUs generally vest 100% at the end of three ya@ilsare payable in either shares of McDonald’s comstock or cash, at the Company’s
option. Certain executives are awarded RSUs tlaparformance based. The fair value of each RShiteplas equal to the market price of
Company'’s stock at date of grant less the presslnewf expected dividends over vesting period.

A summary of the activity of the Company’s RSUsidgrthe year ended December 31, 2005 is presentée ifollowing table.
RSUs

Year ended December 31,

2005
Weighted-
Shares IN average grant
MILLIONS date fair value
Nonvested at December 31, 2C 1.7 $ 16.01
Granted 1.2 32.5¢
Vested (0.7 14.7(
Forfeited (0.2 19.6¢
Nonvested at December 31, 20( 2.€ $ 23.6(

The Company granted 0.2 million RSUs in 2004, somitgj of which have performance conditions, andrhiBion in 2003 which are
service-vested. The Company realized tax deductbfid.2 million from RSUs vested during 2005. Apgmately
1.2 million of RSUs outstanding at December 31,504l vest in first quarter 2006 and the Compamtends to settle these awards using
treasury shares.
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QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

IN MILLIONS,
EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA

Revenues

Sales by Compal-operated restaurar

Revenues from franchised and affiliatec
restaurant

Total revenues

Company-operated margin
Franchised margin
Operating income

Net income

Net income per common share-basic
Net income per common share-diluted

Dividends declared per common shar

Weighted-average share-basic
Weighted-average shares-diluted

Market price per common share:
High

Low

Close

Quarters ended

Quarters ended

Quarters ended

Quarters ended

December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
$3,940.. $3,764.. $4,000.° $3,664.¢ $3,811.. $3,511.¢ $3,599.! $3,283.(
1,294.% 1,246.; 1,326. 1,260.¢ 1,284.t 1,217.2 1,203.1 1,116.°
5,234.¢ 5,010.: 5,327.: 4,925, 5,095.7 4,729.C 4,802.¢ 4,399.°

587.¢ 563.5 610.¢ 578.% 548.€ 526.4 490.4 455.€
1,039.¢ 988.( 1,069.¢ 1,008.( 1,030.° 971.¢ 946.% 870.%

935.51) 617.@ 1,159.¢Y  1,098.¢ 1,016.® 965.¢ 909.¢Y 858.2
$ 608.0 $ 397.® ¢ 73549 $ 778.44 $ 530.4%5 $ 590.7 $ 727.€4® $ 511F
$ 489 % 310§ 5e0 624§ 4255 § A7 $ 5748 § 41
$ 480 3 318 3 B5ED 614§ 4255 A7 $ 58 $ AC
$ — $ — $ 67 $ 55 $ — $ — % — $ —
1,259.¢ 1,264.: 1,253.¢ 1,256." 1,259.t 1,256.C 1,268.t 1,261.°
1,275." 1,280.¢ 1,271.¢ 1,268.: 1,269." 1,268.C 1,289.( 1,275.%
$ 356¢ $ 329¢ $ 35.0: $ 2828 $ 31.91 $ 29.4: $ 34.5¢ $ 29.9¢

31.4¢ 27.31 27.3€ 25.6¢ 27.7¢ 25.0¢ 30.81 24.5¢

33.72 32.0¢ 33.4¢ 28.0¢ 27.7¢ 26.0( 31.1¢ 28.5i

@ Includes shar-based and related incremental compensation expense
* Fourth quarter 200-$44.4 million ($31.2 million after tax or $0.03rmhare)
*  Third quarter 2005-$44.3 million ($30.0 million efttax or $0.02 per share)

» Second quarter 2005-$45.1 million ($30.2 millioteafax or $0.02 per share-diluted, $0.03 per shhasic)

»  First quarter 200-$57.4 million ($38.3 million after tax or $0.03rpEhare)

@ Includes the following pretax charge

* $159.9 million related to a correction in the Compés lease accounting practices and policies.

*  $117.2 million related to asset/goodwill impairm@nimarily in South Korea.

@ Includes net pretax charges of $227.8 million ($184illion after tax or $0.14 per share) consistimigthe $277.1 million prete
charges discussed in note 2 above and a $49.3mitlonoperating gain related to the sale of the Gany’s interest in a U.S. real

estate partnershig

@  The effective income tax rate for the third quadé2004 benefited from an international transatand the utilization of certain
previously unrealized capital loss carryforwardsgtCompany was able to reverse a valuation allowaetated to the carryforwarc
due to the gain discussed in note 3 abc

®  Includes $112.0 million or $0.09 per share of imoental tax expense for the second quarter of 2866lting from the decision

repatriate foreign earnings under the Homeland btagent Act

©® Includes $178.8 million or $0.13 per share of taxéfit for the first quarter of 2005 primarily dtea favorable audit settlement of 1
Compan’s 2002002 U.S. tax return:
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Management’s Report

Management is responsible for the preparationgiitieand fair presentation of the consolidatedficial statements and Notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The financiteshents were prepared in accordance with the atiogurinciples generally accepted in
the U.S. and include certain amounts based on neamagt’s judgement and best estimates. Other finhimformation presented is consistent
with the financial statements.

Management is also responsible for establishingraaiditaining adequate internal control over finahogporting as defined in Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchangedd934. The Company'’s internal control over ficiahreporting is designed under the
supervision of the Company’s principal executive &inancial officers in order to provide reasonafsurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. The Company’s internal control overaficial reporting includes those policies and praocesl that:

() Pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiansactions and dispositions of assets of
the Company

(il Provide reasonable assurance that transactimsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andrétipts and expenditures of the Company are baaudg only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of th@@ny; anc

(iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding pteeor timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlenéial statement

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadé&gbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgiapaternal control over financial reporting asi@écember 31, 2005. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria estabishreernal Control-Integrated Framework issugdhie Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on our assessment and those criteria, maeragegiieves that the Company maintained effedtiternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005.

The Company’s independent registered public ac@ogifitm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an attastateport on management’s
assessment of the Company’s internal control anantial reporting. That report appears on a sulesgigpage of this Report and expresses
unqualified opinions on management’s assessmenbarige effectiveness of the Company’s internatr@mver financial reporting.

McDONALD’S CORPORATION
February 20, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
McDonald’s Corporation

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated balsineets of McDonald’s Corporation as of Decer3tie005 and 2004, and the
related Consolidated statements of income, shatelsllequity and cash flows for each of the threary in the period ended December 31,
2005. These financial statements are the respdihsifi McDonald’s Corporation management. Our i@sgibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marnageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
McDonald’s Corporation at December 31, 2005 and42@@d the consolidated results of its operatiomkits cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2005, ifocmity with U.S. generally accepted accountingpiples.

As discussed in the Notes to the consolidated fiizhistatements, effective January 1, 2005, the 2oy changed its method for accounting
for share-based compensation to conform with SFAS RB(R),Share-Based Paymeittffective January 1, 2003, the Company changed its
method for accounting for asset retirement oblayetito conform with SFAS No.14B¢counting for Asset Retirement Obligations.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited States), the effectiveness
of McDonald’s Corporation’s internal control ovémdncial reporting as of December 31, 2005, basedriteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the CommitfieSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cassion and our report dated
February 20, 2006 expressed an unqualified opitfiereon.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 20, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited management’s assessment, inclodked accompanying Management’s Report, that Mclim&orporation maintained
effective internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2005, based on criteria estaliin Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (the COS@ria). The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and ftx assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our respibility is to express an opinion on managemeass®ssment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordvar financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluatirpiign and operating effectiveness of internatrobrand performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the @tanoes. We believe that our audit provides a redde basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iizé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that thep@oy maintained effective internal control oveaficial reporting as of December 31,
2005, is fairly stated, in all material respectsséd on the COSO criteria. Also in our opinion,@enpany maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financegorting as of December 31, 2005, based on the@Qiteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Standards 8ddnited States), the Consolidated
balance sheets of McDonald’s Corporation as of Bdxe 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related Consotidateements of income,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each otlihee years in the period ended December 31, a68%ur report dated February 20, 2006
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 20, 2006
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure controls

An evaluation was conducted under the supervisiahveth the participation of the Company’s managetniacluding the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), thie effectiveness of the design and operatioh@fQompany’s disclosure controls and
procedures as of December 31, 2005. Based onvhhiation, the CEO and CFO concluded that the Caryipalisclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of such date to erlbaténformation required to be disclosed in thparts that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegumited within the time periods specified in Séms and Exchange Commission ru
and forms.

Internal control over financial reporting

The Company’s management, including the CEO and €dt@rm that there was no change in the Compaimggsnal control over financial
reporting during the quarter ended December 315 288t has materially affected, or is reasonaldgiyi to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s report

Management’s report and the Report of independsgistered public accounting firm on internal cohtreer financial reporting are set forth
in Part 11, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

ltem 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART IlI
tem 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding directors and the Companyssi€of Conduct for the Board of Directors, its Cofi&thics for Chief Executive Officer
and Senior Financial Officers and its StandardBusfiness Conduct are incorporated herein by referélom the Company’s definitive proxy
statement, which will be filed no later than 12@slafter December 31, 2005. We will post any amesrdsito or any waivers for directors
and executive officers from provisions of the Codeour website at www.governance.mcdonalds.com.

Information regarding all of the Company’s execetofficers is included in Part I, page 10 of thisrR 10-K.

ltem 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Incorporated herein by reference from the Compadgfinitive proxy statement, which will be filed fater than 120 days after December
2005.
Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS
Incorporated herein by reference from the Compadgfinitive proxy statement, which will be filed fater than 120 days after December
2005.
Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Incorporated herein by reference from the Compadgfinitive proxy statement, which will be filed fater than 120 days after December
2005.
Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
Incorporated herein by reference from the Compmdegfinitive proxy statement, which will be filed fater than 120 days after December
2005.
PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
a. (1) All Financial statements
Consolidated financial statements filed as pathisf report are listed under Part I, Item 8, pa8#shrough 48 of this
Form 10-K.
(2) Financial statement schedule
No schedules are required because either the esbjmiformation is not present or is not preserarnrounts sufficient to require
submission of the schedule, or because the infematquired is included in the consolidated finahstatements or the notes thereto.
b.  Exhibits
The exhibits listed in the accompanying index #dealfas part of this repoi
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McDonald’s Corporation Exhibit Index (Item 15)
Exhibit number/descriptio
(a) Restated Certificate of Incorporation, effectiveodlarch 24, 1998, incorporated herein by refeesinom Form 8-K, dated April

(3)

(4)

17,1998

(b) By-Laws, as amended and restated January 26, 20@8parated herein by reference from For-K dated January 26, 20C
Instruments defining the rights of security holdémsluding Indentures: *

Senior Debt Securities Indenture, dated ascodla®r 19, 1996, incorporated herein by referermm fExhibit (4)(a) of Form S-3
Registration Statement (File No. -14141).

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

6 3/8% Debentures due January 8, 2028. Suppiaahdenture No. 1, dated as of January 8, 19@8rporated herein by
reference from Exhibit (4)(a) of Forn-K, dated January 5, 199

Medium-Term Notes, Series F, due from one YieaB0 Years from the Date of Issue. Supplementdmture No. 4,
incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit (#i{tForm S-3 Registration Statement (File No. 38345), dated July
15, 1998

Medium-Term Notes, Series G, due from one I¥ea60 Years from Date of Issue. Supplemental htale No. 6,
incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit (#i{tForm S-3 Registration Statement (File No. 83-70), dated May :
2001.

Medium-Term Notes, Series H, due from one YteaB0 Years from Date of Issue. Supplemental ItatenNo. 7,
incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit (#i{tForm S-3 Registration Statement (File No. 32212), dated July
10, 2002

Subordinated Debt Securities Indenture, dated &ctafber 18, 1996, incorporated herein by referdrara Exhibit (4)(a) of Forn
8-K, dated October 18, 199

(i)

7.31% Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debastwue 2027. Supplemental Indenture No. 3, datpte®der 24, 1997,
incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit (#)¢bForm K, dated September 19, 19¢

Debt Securities Indenture, dated as of Marct®87, incorporated herein by reference from Ext{hi(a) of Form S3 Registratiol
Statement (File No. -12364).

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

8 7/8% Debentures, due 2011. Supplemental liwderNo. 17, incorporated herein by reference fiothibit (4) of Form 8-
K, dated April 22, 1991

Medium-Term Notes, Series D, due from nine tisn(U.S. Issue)/184 days (Euro Issue) to 60 yieans Date of Issue.
Supplemental Indenture No. 18, incorporated hedrgireference from Exhibit (4)(b) of Form S-3 Reasibn Statement
(File No. 3:-42642), dated September 10, 19

Medium-Term Notes, Series E, due from ninentis (U.S. Issue)/184 days (Euro Issue) to 60 yieans the Date of Issue.
Supplemental Indenture No. 22, incorporated hdrgireference from Exhibit (4)(b) of Form S-3 Rerfsibn Statement
(File No. 3:-60939), dated July 13, 19¢

McDonald's Corporation 2002 QSC Rewards Progrefifiective as of February 13, 2002, incorporatetim by reference from
Exhibit (4) of Form -3A Registration Statement (File No. -82920), dated March 14, 20(

0]
(i)
(iii)

Prospectus dated March 15, 2002, incorporatexkference from Form 424(b)(4) (File No. 333-8292ited March 20,
2002.

Prospectus Supplement (to Prospectus datediHs, 2002) dated March 4, 2003, incorporatecefigrence from Form
424(b)(3) (File No. 33-82920).

Prospectus Supplement (to Prospectus dateativids, 2002, and to Prospectus Supplement datedhMia 2003) dated
September 25, 2003, incorporated by reference fform 424(b)(3) (File No. 3:-82920).

(10) Material Contract:

Directors’ Stock Plan, as amended and restdtedh 24, 2005, incorporated herein by referenemfForm 10-Q, for the quarter
ended March 31, 2005

McDonald's Excess Benefit and Deferred BonwPéffective January 1, 2005, as amended andedstane 2, 2005,
incorporated herein by reference from Forr-Q, for the quarter ended June 30, 20(

(@)
(b)
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(c) McDonald’'s Corporation Supplemental Profit Shgrand Savings Plan, effective as of Septemb26Q1, incorporated herein by
reference from Form -K, for the year ended December 31, 20(

0] First Amendment to the McDonald’s Corporatiomplemental Profit Sharing and Savings Plan, effeas of January 1,
2002, incorporated herein by reference from For-K, for the year ended December 31, 20(

(il  Second Amendment to the McDonald’s Corporat8upplemental Profit Sharing and Savings Planctffe January 1,
2005, incorporated herein by reference from For-K, for the year ended December, 31, 20(

(d) 1975 Stock Ownership Option Plan, as amendddestated July 30, 2001, incorporated herein fareace from Form 10-Q, for
the quarter ended September 30, 20!

(e) 1992 Stock Ownership Incentive Plan, as ameadéddestated January 1, 2001, incorporated hbyeiaference from Form 10-Q,
for the quarter ended March 31, 200

() 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plasamended and restated September 12, 2000, inategdrerein by reference
from Form 1(-Q, for the quarter ended September 30, 20

(o) Executive Retention Plan, as amended and essB¢cember 1, 2004, incorporated herein by reéerénom Form 10-K, for the
year ended December 31, 200

(h) McDonald’s Corporation Amended and Restatedl20fhnibus Stock Ownership Plan, as amended arateds¥larch 18, 2004,
incorporated herein by reference from Forr-Q, for the quarter ended June 30, 20(

() Form of McDonald’s Corporation Tier | Change®@bntrol Employment Agreement, as amended, authadfizy the Board of
Directors, on December 3, 2003, incorporated hdrgireference from Form -K, for the year ended December 31, 20(

0] First Amendment to Tier | Change of Control Hmpnent Agreement, effective January 25, 2005, ipoated herein by
reference from Form -K, for the year ended December 31, 20(

() McDonald’'s Corporation 2004 Cash Incentive Rleaffiective as of January 1, 2004, incorporate@indoy reference from Form
1C-Q, for the quarter ended June 30, 20(

(k) Senior Director Letter Agreement between Dor@ld_ubin and the Company, incorporated hereindfgrence from Form 8-K,
dated May 10, 2005.

()  Arrangement between M. Lawrence Light and tleenPany, incorporated herein by reference from FborK for the year ended
December 31, 2004

(m) Form of Stock Option Grant Notice, incorporatedeieiby reference from Form -Q, for the quarter ended June 30, 20(

(n) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Notice, dmporated herein by reference from Form 10-Q, ierquarter ended June 30,
2005.*

(12) Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed char

(21) Subsidiaries of the registra

(23) Consent of independent registered public accoutiiting

(31.1) Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Offic

(31.2) Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Offic

(32.1) Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135Q@H®/ Chief Executive Officer, as adopted pursuarBéction 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

(32.2) Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135Q@H®/Chief Financial Officer, as adopted pursuaréction 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

* Denotes compensatory ple

**  Qther instruments defining the rights of holdefdong-term debt of the registrant and all ofsitdsidiaries for which consolidated
financial statements are required to be filed ah@tkvare not required to be registered with the @isgion, are not included herein as
the securities authorized under these instrumamdsjidually, do not exceed 10% of the total assdtthe registrant and its subsidiaries
on a consolidated basis. An agreement to furnisbpg of any such instruments to the Commission upguoest has been filed with the
Commission
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theunto duly authorized.

McDonald’s Corporation
(Registrant)

By /S/  Matthew H. Paull
Matthew H. Paull
Corporate Senior Executive Vice President and Chieéncial Officer

February 27, 200
Date

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exa@mnge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beldywy the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in their capacities inlicated below on the 27th day of February, 2006:

Signature, Title

By /S/ Hall Adams, Jr.

Hall Adams, Jr.
Director

By /S/  Edward A. Brennan

Edward A. Brennan
Director

By /S/  Robert A. Eckert
Robert A. Ecker
Director

By /S/ Enrigue Hernandez, Jr.

Enrique Hernandez, <
Director

By

Jeanne P. Jackson
Director

By /S/Richard H. Lenny

Richard H. Lenny
Director

By /S/  Walter E. Massey

Walter E. Massey
Director

By /S/ Andrew J. McKenna

Andrew J. McKenna
Chairman of the Board and Director

By /S| Cary D. McMillan
Cary D. McMillan
Director
By /S/  Matthew H. Paull

Matthew H. Paull
Corporate Senior Executive Vice President and Chieéncial Officer

By /S/ David M. Pojman

David M. Pojman
Corporate Senior Vice Preside«Controller

By /S/  Michael J. Roberts
Michael J. Roberts
President and Chief Operating Officer and Direc

By /S/  John W. Rogers, Jr.

John W. Rogers, Jr.
Director




By

By

By

/S! James A. Skinner

James A. Skinner
Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

/S/  Ann-Marie Slaughter

Anne-Marie Slaughte
Director

/S/ Roger W. Stone

Roger W. Stont
Director
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Exhibit 12. McDONALD’S CORPORATION COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARINIGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Years ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Earnings available for fixed charges

Income before provision for income taxes and cutiudaeffect of
accounting change $3,701.¢  $3,202.4Y  $2,346.42  $1,662.®  $2,329.°®

Minority interest expense (income) in operatingutessof majority-
owned subsidiaries, including fixed charges relabecedeemable
preferred stock, less equity in undistributed opegaresults of less-

thar-50% owned affiliate: 3.1 5.4 18.1 6.€ (15.9
Income tax provision (benefit) of 50% owned affiia included in
consolidated income before provision for incomeets (3.5) 13.1 (28.€) (9.5 51.C
Portion of rent charges (after reduction for refriabme from sublease
properties) considered to be representative oféstdactors’ 338.¢ 310.2 289.¢ 266.7 252.%
Interest expense, amortization of debt discountissubnce costs, and
depreciation of capitalized interes 392.C 394.2 427.2 419.7 510.:
$4,432.. $3,925. $3,052.¢ $2,345.¢ $3,128.:
Fixed charges
Portion of rent charges (after reduction for remtabme from subleased
properties) considered to be representative ofésteéactors’ $ 338.t $ 310.: $ 289.¢ $ 266.7 $ 252t
Interest expense, amortization of debt discountissubnce costs, and
fixed charges related to redeemable preferred st 373.¢ 375.¢ 408.¢ 401.7 492.¢
Capitalized interest 5.C 4.1 7.8 14.2 15.4
$ 7172 $ 689.C $ 706. $ 682.¢ $ 760.¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 6.1¢ 5.6¢ 4.3 3.44 411
* Includes amounts of the Registrant and its maj-owned subsidiaries, and one-half of the amoun&0&6-owned affiliates.

@  Includes pretax charges of $241.1 million consgstifi $130.5 million related to asset/goodwill immaént and $159.9 million related
the correction in the Company’s lease accountinacpces and policies as well as a $49.3 millionngaglating to the sale of the
Compan’s interest in a U.S. real estate partnersi

@ Includes pretax charges of $407.6 million primangated to the disposition of certain r-McDonald’s brands and asset/goodwill
impairment.

@ Includes pretax charges of $853.2 million primangated to restructuring markets and eliminatingsftions, restaurant closings/as:
impairment and the wri-off of technology cost

@ Includes net pretax expense of $252.9 million timgj of charges primarily related to the U.S. Imesis reorganization and other glo
change initiatives and restaurant closings/assetaimment, partly offset by a gain on the initialphie offering of McDonall's Japan
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Exhibit 21. McDONALD’S CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Name of Subsidiary (State or Country of Incorpara}i

Domestic Subsidiaries

Boston Market Corporation (Delaware)

Chipotle Mexican Grill, Inc. (Delaware)

Franchise Realty Investment Trust - lllinois (Detaa)
Golden Arches Limited Partnership (Delaware)
McDonald’s AMEA, LLC (Delaware)

McDonald’s Deutschland, Inc. (Delaware)
McDonald’s Development Italy, Inc. (Delaware)
McDonald’s Europe, Inc. (Delaware)

McDonald’s International Property Company, Ltd. [&eare)
McDonald’s Latin America, LLC (Delaware)
McDonald’s Real Estate Company (Delaware)
McDonald’s Restaurant Operations, Inc. (Delaware)
McDonald’s Sistemas de Espana, Inc. (Delaware)
McDonald’s USA, LLC (Delaware)

McDonald’s Ventures, LLC (Delaware)

Foreign Subsidiaries

Arras Comercio de Alimentos Ltda. (Brazil)

McDonald’s Australia Holding Limited (Australia)
McDonald’s Australia Limited (Australia)

McDonald’'s Comercia de Alimentos Ltda. (Brazil)
McDonald’s Danmark A/S (Denmark)

McDonald’s France, S.A. (France)

McDonald’s GmbH (Germany)

McDonald’s Immobilien GmbH (Germany)

McDonald’s Inmobiliaria de Mexico S. de R.L. de C(Wlexico)
McDonald’s LLC (Russia)

McDonald’s Nederland B.V. (Netherlands)

McDonald’s Polska Sp.zo.o. (Poland)

McDonald’s Real Estate LLP (United Kingdom)
McDonald’s Restaurants (Hong Kong) Ltd. (Hong Kong)
McDonald’s Restaurants (New Zealand) Ltd. (New Zed)
McDonald’s Restaurants (Taiwan) Co., Ltd. (Taiwan)
McDonald’s Restaurants Limited (United Kingdom)
McDonald’s Restaurants of Canada Limited (Canada)
McDonald’s Suisse Franchise Sarl (Switzerland)
Moscow-McDonald’s (Russia)

Restaurantes McDonald’s, S.A. (Spain)

Sistemas McDonald’s Portugal Limitada (Portugal)
Svenska McDonald's AB (Sweden)

Svenska McDonald’s Development AB (Sweden)

The names of certain subsidiaries have been onagddllows:

(&) 49 wholly-owned subsidiaries of McDonald’s USAC, each of which operates one or more McDonald&aurants within the United
States

(b) Additional subsidiaries, including some foreigther than those mentioned in (a), because ceresidn the aggregate as a single
subsidiary, they would not constitute a significanbsidiary

58 McDonalc's Corporatior



Exhibit 23. CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements of McDonald’s Corporatiod the related prospectus of our
reports dated February 20, 2006 with respect t&€Cthesolidated financial statements of McDonald'sgoation, McDonald’s Corporation
management’s assessment of the effectivenesseshaltcontrol over financial reporting, and theeefiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of McDonald’s Corporation, inded in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the yeaded December 31, 2005.

Commission File No.

FORM S-8 FORM S-3
3:-09267 3:-00001
3%-24958 33-6487¢
3349817 335-2589¢
3:-50701 33:-5914¢
3:-58840 33:-6017C

33303409 33:-8292C
3365033 33:-92212
33:-36776 333-12045:
33:-36778
33571656

33:-121092
33:-115770

Chicago, Illinois ERNST & YOUNG LLP
February 23, 200
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Exhibit 31.1. RULE 13A-14(A) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OREER

I, James A. Skinner, Vice Chairman and Chief ExigeuDfficer of McDonald’s Corporation, certify that

1)
()

(3)
(4)

()

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of McDonalc's Corporation

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact ontdmstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dahare responsible for establishing and maintgmiisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dahhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@tuaf internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent

functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 27, 2006 By /S/ James A. Skinner

James A. Skinner
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2. RULE 13A-14(A) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFEEER

I, Matthew H. Paull, Corporate Senior Executived&/Rresident and Chief Financial Officer of McDonal@orporation, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of McDonalc's Corporation

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatnrany untrue statement of a material fact orténgtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dahare responsible for establishing and maintagmiisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dahhave disclosed, based on our most recent eN@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 27, 2006 By /S/ Matthew H. Pau
Matthew H. Paull
Corporate Senior Executive Vice Presid
and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1. CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 BHE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTF2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 135@p@#r 63 of Title 18, United States
Code), the undersigned officer of McDonald’s Cogtimn (the “Company”), does hereby certify, to sofficer’'s knowledge, that the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQa5 of the Company fully complies with the reguiients of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and informationtained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, innaditerial respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 27, 2006 By /S/ James A. Skinng

James A. Skinner
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2. CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 BHE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTF2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 135@p@#r 63 of Title 18, United States
Code), the undersigned officer of McDonald’s Cogtimn (the “Company”), does hereby certify, to sofficer’'s knowledge, that the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQa5 of the Company fully complies with the reguiients of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and informationtained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, innaditerial respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 27, 2006 By /S/ Matthew H. Pau
Matthew H. Paul
Corporate Senior Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
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The following trademarks used herein are the ptgpgErMcDonald’s Corporation and its affiliates thie Company: Big Mac, Big N'Tasty,
Boston Market, Chicken McNuggets, Chicken Selegtgpotle Mexican Grill, Egg McMuffin, Filet-O-Fistim lovin’ it, McDonald's,
McFlurry, McGriddles, Quarter Pounder, Ronald McBlah Sausage McMuffin, The Golden Arches Logo ardonalds.com.
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